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By MOHAMMED AL-QADHI
YEMEN TIMES STAFF

Sheikh  Abdulmajeed al-
Zindani, head of Islah’s
Consultative Council, denied
US allegations on his involve-
ment in terrorists’ support.

In a press statement distrib-
uted Friday evening, al-Zindani
said “I am happy to announce to
the people my denial to the US
Treasury Department charges
and if the USA has ary evi-
dences, they must be presented
to the Yemeni judiciary.”

He added, “The Yemeni gov-
ernment is concerned with
defending its citizens and I am a
Yemeni citizen.”

Al-Zindani stressed that he
condemns terrorism as defined
by Muslim clerics and it is can
be summarized as that act in
which arms are used beyond
Sharia’a and law or killing of
innocent people.

“Such an act is terrorism
which I condemn in all its forms
and I already announced that
several times,” he said.

The US Treasury Department

Accused of terrorist crimes

announced Tuesday that al-
Zindani, Rector of al-Eman
(Religious) University, has been
added to the American govern-
ment’s list of people suspected
of supporting terrorist activities.

This statement of al-Zindani
came out after intensive meet-
ings for high ranking leaders of
the Islah party headed by Sheikh
Abdullah Bin Hussein al-Ahmar
who is also a prime leader of
Hashid Tribe and speaker of par-
liament.

Al-Zindani called a press con-
ference Thursday to comment
on the US allegations but when
journalists were at the spot, al-
Zindani refused to be filmed or
recorded and said that Islah
leadership would hold an emer-
gency meeting to reply to the
US charges.

He said that he could not
comment unless he receives
documents of the charges by the
Americans. )

On Friday, an emergency

‘Sheikh Abdulmajeed
al-Zindani

Zindani denies allegations

A scene from Guantanamo Bay prison, where dozens of Yemenls are belng held for holding
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meeting for the Islah top leaders
came out with a short statement
saying that “Islah leadership
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refuting the US allegations
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against Sheikh Abdulmajeed al-
Zindani because he is a Yemeni
citizen.”

Before this meeting, Sheikh
Abdullah al-Ahmar met the US
ambassador to Yemen Edmund
Hull and discussed with him al-
Zindani issue. Al-Ahmar asked
Hull for details about the US
charges for al-Zindani but Hull,
according to reliable sources,

terrorist views propogated by Osama bin Laden. The U.S. is linking cleric Sheikh Abdulmajeed
al-Zindani to bin Laden, but the Yemeni is denying the charges. (Reuters file photo)

told al-Ahmar that he does not
have those details.

Al-Ahmar even moved along
with some Islah leaders to
Hadramaut on Friday to meet
President Ali Abdullah Saleh to
see how the US allegations can
be answered.

Al-Zindani was described by
the US Treasury Department as
a “loyalist” to Osama bin Laden,
adding that he “has along histo-
ry of working with Bin Laden,

notably serving as one of his
spiritual leaders.”

It also said that al-Zindani has
actively recruited for al-Qaeda’s
terrorist training camps and
played a role in the purchase of
weapons for al-Qaeda and other
terrorists. The US has ordered
freezing of al-Zindani financial
assets and plans to ask the UN to
add al-Zindani to its blocking
list.

Yemen Times tried to contact

the US embassy to get any offi-
cial comment on this case but
they apologized because it is
very sensitive and critical and
they do not want to be misquot-
ed. However, John Ballian,
Public Affairs Officer at the US
embassy in Sana’a said a press
statement that adding al-Zindani
to the US terrorist suspect list
does not ‘“constitute a request
for extradition”.

Continued on page 3

Surprising twist as sit-in drags on

Ethiopians may get new home

By PETER WILLEMS
YEMEN TIMES STAFF

The 200 Ethiopian refugees who have
been protesting with a sit-in in front of the
UN High Commission for Refugees
(UNHCR) office in Sana’a, may be reset-
tled outside of Yemen.

The startling revelation came from
Yemen’s foreign minister, after a meeting
several days ago with UNHCR official
Saad Al-Attar.

“UNHCR has decided to open the pos-
sibility for the refugees to find permanent
residence in another country,” Qirbi told
The Yemen Times.

This week, UNHCR distributed new
registration forms to learn which refugees
would like to be resettled in another coun-
try. Meetings will also be scheduled by
the UNHCR to assist the refugees seeking
to find a home outside Yemen.

The refugees have narrowed their
demands down to obtaining Yemeni
nationality. If that’s not possible, they say
they would accept being resettled in

another country.

But interactions with the UNHCR have
still been strained, as the Ethiopians still
want clearer answers.

“We did not fill out the forms because it
is not clear at all what will happen to us,”
said one of the refugees Adane Belachew.
“What we want is a solid, tangible solu-
tion. We prefer to gain nationality in
Yemen. If not we would accept resettling
in another country, but we would do that
knowing that we would gain citizenship
somewhere else.”

Belachew added that, “We will contin-
ue the sit-in until we witness a real solu-
tion.”

According to Qirbi, the refugees have
the choice to remain as refugees in Yemen
or make an attempt to be resettled.

“If they are not resettled, their presence
in Yemen will continue under refugee sta-

us,” said Qirbi. “And if they wish to con-
tinue the sit-in, they can stay as long as
there are not any disturbances.”

The Ethiopians’ complaints include
threats to be forcefully returned to

Ethiopia, unjustified arrests and detention
by local authorities, an inability to get
work permits, religious persecution, the
lack of proper education and health care,
and no opportunity to receive Yemeni
nationality or resettle in another country.

Al-Attar argues that under the 1951
Convention established by the UN,
UNHCR’s primary job is to support and

monitor a host country on how it deals

with refugees. He stressed that the ones
protesting have received refugee status
and have been granted basic rights and
freedom in Yemen, which signed the 1951
Convention in 1980. He also said that
those are considered the most important
goals the UNHCR would like to see
achieved in a host country.

Al-Attar adds that the government of a
host country is responsible for deciding if
refugees receive nationality while the
UNHCR encourages the government to
do so.
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To make ends meet

Journalists
become taxi
drivers

By Yemen Times Staff

In a bizarre case, which is first of its
kind in Yemen, several journalists
belonging to official newspapers have
decided to use the cars of their institu-
tions as taxis after receiving negative
responses to their continuous demands
of a raise in their salaries.

According to one of those journalists,
“The Prime Minister has not responded
yet to our request in raising our salaries
as we are suffering from extremely poor
economic conditions.”

The level of desperation of journal-
ists working for official newspapers
have caused many to think of using the
vehicles of the establishments they are
working for as taxis.

In one of the latest incidents of this
kind, a minibus carrying a governmen-
tal numbered plate and having paintings
showing that it belongs to a prominent
official newspaper was carrying passen-
gers to Dhamar and Yareem at the
Shumaila station.

When asked why the driver was
using an official vehicle for such pur-
poses he said that he needed to do so to
get what is enough money for fueling
the car and gaining enough money to
make ends meet that day.

Al-Khaleej case grows

Reporters Without
Borders urges
investigation into
threats on journalist

By News Services

Reporters Without Borders has urged
Yemeni authorities to ensure their
investigation into death threats against
Sadeq Nasher, managing editor of the
Sanaa office of the Emirates daily Al-
Khaleej is as full and prompt as possi-
ble.

Nasher was out at the Journalists’
Union on 19 February when unidenti-
fied armed men burst into his Sanaa
home, threatened his family and
destroyed possessions, he told the inter-
national press freedom organisation.
They warned his children, “If your
father carries on investigating the
Jarallah case he will come to the same
end as him.”

Jarallah Omar, secretary general of
the Yemeni Socialist Party (PSY) was
murdered during a political rally in
Sanaa in December 2002. The case has
been particularly difficult for the
Yemeni and foreign press to cover in
the light of the fight against terrorism
and relations with neighbouring Saudi

Arabia.

Reporters Without Borders said it
welcomed the opening of an investiga-
tion by the Political Security services
into the death threats against Nasher
and called for it to be both full and
prompt so that those responsible could
be found and punished.

“As journalist union elections have
just been held in Yemen, media profes-
sionals should be able to rely on the
authorities to guarantee press freedom
and their protection,” the organisation
said.

The Yemeni information ministry
had accused local and foreign corre-
spondents and opposition media at the
beginning of January 2003, of deliber-
ately carrying false reports on the mur-
ders of three American missionaries and
the PSY Number Two Jarallah Omar.

Accused of seeking to harm the
country’s interests and to sow discord
among the people, the media was
threatened with legal action if it did not
report with “objectivity and impartiali-
ty.”0

By HASSAN AL-ZAIDI
YEMEN TIMES STAFF

An exhibition on 130 years of the
Yemeni press held at Bait al-Thaqafa
in Sana’a was concluded on Sunday
29 February.

The exhibition was organised by
the National Center for Documents
and Information in cooperation with
the National House for Books on 22-
29 February.

The exhibition comes as an event to
give prominence to the history of the
Yemeni press and its roe in document-
ing Yemen’s political, social and cul-
tural history throughout that period.

Exhibition on 130 years of
Yemeni press concluded

The exhibition included 262 issues
arranged chronologically according to
their occurrence of time, in addition to
newspapers issued by Yemeni expati-
ates abroad.

The importance of the exhibition
derives from the role of the press as a
united national fabric, regardless of
the place of issue and variety of polit-
ical and intellectual orientations it has
followed.

Its significance also stems from its
being held at the time Yemen is cele-
brating the declaration of Sana’a as
capital of Arab culture 2004, and the
historical importance of such docu-
ments and publications.
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Great fires

erupt in orchards

A huge fire erupted in the areas of
Wadi al-Malik and Al-Ruais overlook-
ing the Red Sea shores, Taiz gover-
norate caused the burning of hundreds
of palm trees and shrubs nearby.

Strong winds helped the spread of
fires that resulted in great material loss-
es but no human losses were recorded.

People in the afflicted areas and gov-
ernment authorities rushed to extin-
guish the fires.

Yemen Times had learned that the
authorities of Taiz governorate had
formed an emergency committee to
investigate the causes of fires and to
deal with the incident.

Journalist released,
protests continue

BY MOHAMMED BINSALLAM
YEMEN TIMES STAFF

The Yemeni journalist Najeeb Yabli was
released on Tuesday under directives from
the president of the republic.

He was arrested by political security
authorities of Aden on Tuesday following
his return from Sana’a where he partici-
pated in the third conference of the Yemeni
Journalists Syndicate.

The journalist had two weeks before
published an article in Al-Ayyam daily
newspaper and some of the phrases had
been interpreted as containing offending
words against the president, but those who

followed up Yabli’s article denied such
indications in his article and that it was
misinterpreted.

In the wake of that incident voices are
raised demanding the protection of jour-
nalists by issuing a law preventing impris-
onment of journalists or humiliating them.

Meanwhile, Paris-based organisation *
Journalists Without Borders” condemned
in a statement the attempted attack on the
house of journalist Sadeq Nasher, director
of al-Khaleej newspaper office in Sana’a
and the threat of physical liquidating
against him two weeks ago when five gun-
men attacked Nashir’s house, causing
panic among members of his family.

£ Readers’ P

Voice

Yemen Times features
“Readers’ Voice” a popular way
for our readers to interact with
us. This is your opportunity to
have a say on world and local
affairs.

This edition’s question:

The Yemen government says it
may resettle the Ethiopian
protesters outside of Yemen. Do
you think that
1. They should be resettled
outside the country?

2. They should stay in Yemen,
with better rights?

3. They should stay in Yemen,
with no change in their
refugee status?

last edition’s question:

Do you think that President Saleh
would follow steps taken by
Egyptian President in removing
imprisonment sentence in press
laws? 36%
* Yes, but it will take some time 34%
* No, it may never happen 30%

Go to our website at:
yementimes.com/#poll
K and have your voice heard! /

Road signs put up

Canadian Nexen tries
to make roads safer

BY YEMEN TIMES STAFF

Thanks to a Canadian oil company,
some of Yemen'’s roads are safer.

Local Military Commander — Lt.
Col. Ahmed Al-Dharab worked with
the Nexen Environmental, Health and
Safety Manager — James Kondol posi-
tioning 10 road signs in an area where
five people have died in accidents since
Eid.

This is another part of Nexen’s
Responsible Care Program providing
help and advice with regard to local
hazards outside the Masila Block Oil
Production Field.

In an area near Nexen'’s oil fields in
the Hadhramout Region, five people
have died and another 18 locals were
injured because of motor vehicle acci-

Marine
agreements
with Oman

The members of the Shura council
and parliament held a joint meeting
in Sana’a on Feb. 26 to discuss the
marine border agreements signed
last December by Oman and Yemen.

The discussions will also include

‘the regulatory system to establish
the Sana’a Cooperation Gathering
that was signed in Addis Ababa in
the end of last December.

According to the constitution,
joint meetings of members of Shura
and parliament are being done upon
summons by the President to be the
event in which voting on crucial
issues will take place.

The speaker of the parliament
usually chairs such joint sessions,
which should end up with either the
approval or rejection of signed
agreements and treaties related to
reconciliation, peaceful resolutions,
border agreements, and similar
issues of grave importance for the
republic.

Smugglers
caught

Yemeni security forces arrested
local boats loaded with weapons in the
Arabian Sea near Al Mukala seaport
recently.

Smugglers were attempting to load
weapons onto large boats in order to
ship it to Somalia.

The recent trend is that weapons are
smuggled from Yemen to neighbour-
ing countries.

In the past many weapons have
been smuggled to Yemen through
Somalia and the African horn.

dents.

These tragic events occurred as a
result of vehicles passing each other on
dusty roads and colliding at high speed.

The lack of people wearing seat belts
contributed to the severity of the
injuries and fatalities. Nexen and the
Commander recognized the need to
make people aware of the dust hazards
and the idea to make and install signs
was created.

The signs have been placed at key
points along a 26-kilometer stretch of
dust hazard road. ]

It is hoped that the repeated message
will encourage drivers to drive very
carefully in dusty conditions.

The sign above is near the junction to
the town of Ghail Bin You main.
Another set of signs has been posted at
a road leading to Ressib village.

It is hoped that people joining the
road at those locations will read the
sign and be reminded of the hazards.

This 26-km stretch of road has expe-
rienced many deaths in the last 5 or 6
years. The estimate was over 12 fatali-

ties and many more serious injuries.

In nearly all cases the injured people
were brought to the Nexen Medical
Clinic for immediate attention and if
necessary evacuation by GNPY’s air-
craft to the main government hospital
in Mukalla.

Since this Eid, two aircraft flights
have taken a total of four people to hos-
pital in Mukalla, during 2003 there
were 10 medical evacuation flights and
in 2002 - five such flights.

Nexen is committed to helping their
neighbors and all Nexen Medical emer-
gency services and aircraft flights have
been provided free of charge to local
people.

Vehicle accident prevention is to be a
key safety promotion issue for
Canadian Nexen during 2004 and it
will be taken to Communities as part of
the company’s Responsible Care pro-
gram.

Advertisement features have been
planned and the first, involving
Yemen’s President Abdullah Ali Saleh,
is being released soon.

Newly-elected YJS chairman

Mahboob Ali pledges
better times for media

By YEMEN TIMES STAFF

In his first meeting with the newly
elected board members following his re-
election as the chairman of the Yemeni
Journalists Syndicate (YJS), Mahboob
Ali pledged to support journalists and
the media sector in Yemen.

Mahboob Ali had expressed his happi-
ness for gaining the confidence and trust
of journalists who voted for him during
the assembly held last week and
expressed his appreciation to all those
who congratulated him on the occasion
of his reelection.

“I would like to thank all those who
congratulated me on being reelected,
including Kuwaiti Ambassador Mr.
Abdulrhaman Hamud Al-Oteibi, General
Secretary of the General Arab Journalists
Federation Mr. Salahedding Hafidh, Mr.
Naeem Al-Tobasi the Chairman of the
Palestinian Journalists Syndicate, Mr.
George Macintyre, Head of the National
Union of Journalists in UK and Ireland,
Mr.  Wolfgang Mayer, Deutsche
Journalists Union, in Germany, and
many others.” he said.

Mahboob Ali had also emphasized
that he will be working hard to rise to the
expectations of the voters and the coun-
try, and will work with local and interna-
tional organizations to enhance the con-
ditions of living of journalists and capac-
ities of newspapers in Yemen.

This comes after Mahboob won the
elections held on Feb. 23 easily, as he got
around 400 votes out of more than 700.
That was far ahead of his closest com-

petitor Hamud Munassar.

Participants in the elections have
jointly praised the level of transparency
of the elections, which were full of
delays and infighting.

They wished success to the chairman,
which will have several goals ahead of
him including tackling issues of human
rights violations against journalists, eco-
nomic hardships of journalists, and other
issues such as the proposed bill, which
could impose a three per cent tax on
newspapers income.

Upon pressure from journalists, the
government had promised to withdraw
the bill from parliament, but has not
done so thus far.

The chairman will also be pressing on
the abandoning of the law that imprisons
journalists, which continues to threaten
the freedom of the press in Yemen.
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Zindani denies allegations

Political analysts described the Islah
response to the charges as “clever and
cautious” as it does not want to defend him
before things become clear, putting the
case at the hand of the state because he is
a Yemeni citizen and that Islah is not a
government but a political party that has no
embassies throngh which to contact the US
administration. .

However, the case is very lﬁacuit for
ting the country, according to.
analysts, in a real fix. :

On his pari, Dr. Abdulk

a press conference in Paris last Thursday
that al-Zindani “is a weli-known patriot and
a former member of the presidential coun-
cil and held a press conference said that he
would respond unless he receives the

would tell the truth” .
The los Angeies szes reported
January 2003 that prisoners held in con-

Cole told local authorities that al-Zindani
issued a decree or fatwa ordering the strike
and that the authorities did not investigate
| into such allegations which were denied by
some leaders of the Islah party.

“The allegations - and the government's
reluctance to investigate, or at least to
acknowledge that it is investigating -
demonstrate the extraordinary challenges
facing Yemen and U.S. officials trying to
fight terrorism here,” the US _newspaper

both the government and Islah pafty, put-'
ca} i3

political advisor to President Saleh, said in

charges against him. We are sure that he

nection with the attack against the USS

said.

“Authorities can expect greater opposi-
tion if they try to exiradite, arrest or even
question someone of Zindani's stature,” it
added.

_ The newspaper said Zindani is a former
teacher and confidant of Osama bin Laden |
and that his radical anti-American, anti-

Jewish brand of Isiam not only had be
tolerated until recently by the central g
ernment but was a .

_ who fought _against Sovie

Afghanistan in the 1980s
role in helping en i
1994,

“The Uni
question

the prisoners’ statements are the first evi-
dence that has surfaced in Yemen th

‘might connect Zindani with the blast” the

newspaper added.
Al-Zindani is the third prominent mem-

with terrorists. Last month, the US accused

Sheikh Abdullah Sa’atar of raising money
for terrorist operations which he denied.

_ Last year, Sheikh Mohammed al-
Mouyad was arrested in a trap set for hi
in Germany and then he was turned ov
the US which has accused him of collecting
more than $20 mt!l"on for al~0aeda and Bin
Laden.

connection with the
uthorities here said that

The refugees also explain that they
protest is against the UNHCR because
they are trapped in the middle of interna-
tional politics. They represent approxi-
mately 600 Ethiopians who defected their
country 13 years ago. They were part of

_the Ethiopian Navy and handed over 14
~ warships to the Yemeni government when
 they arrived.

“We are ili-fated refugees”
refugee involved in the sit-in. "it is danger-

ous to talk about the way we are treated in

could extradite us to Ethiopia if it wanted
to. It is also better not to talk about the
Ethiopian government since we are now in
exite. Therefore, itis ’bett‘er not to place our
demands on the Yemeni or the Ethiopian
governments, but to to the United
Nations which has the ability to ﬁnd and
implement a solution.”

According to one government ofﬁcxal'

said one

Yemen because the Yemeni government

Ethiopians may get new hom »

the relatzonsh;p between Ye_ n
Ethuama is important. The Yemeni gove
ment and the UNHCR have b
expressed concern working
retugees in the sit-in due to the sensitivity

Yemem President Ali Abdulkah Saieh' ‘
be

visited the capital of Eﬁ}lop!a last ye:
where Yemen, Ethiopia and Sudan agreed
to form an alliance to fight terrorism.

Many countries are cautious dealing

with refugees that have been in the military
in their original country or were once
involved in political movements.

If the refugees participating in the
protest attempt resettling in another coun-

try, they might face difficulties.

_ According to a UNHCR report, there are

approximately 22 million refugees world-
wide. Countries that offer resettiement only

give about 3,000 remgees a new home

each year.
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Refugees and UNHCR
The issues

The Yemen Times has received letiers ﬁom Imth tIze Et mpum refugees, ,
: 2 Re fu

ir sztuatwn, and UNHCR rqected the refugees cla
Belaw are some of the complamts fmm the refuge

: Deportat:on .

Refugees: The refugees have recelved

pressure from UNHCR

of the Ethmp;an Embassy, 1o return to the;rf
nitry of origin where they defected in

11991, They are in fear of being forced to
| return and face dangerous consequences.
UNHCR: Under Article 33 of the 1951

Convermon. refugees are protected from

| forced repatriation, and the Yemeni gov-
ernment has assured UNHCR that it wifl

not be applied. Repatriation can only take
place voiuntanly and an estimated 150 of
the |

have voiuntaniyv .

» -r c!ure -and procedures, grantmg'
work permits has been limited. When the

‘national refugee law is established by the

Yemeni government, UNHCR will continue

o prowde legal assistance to refugees to

acquire permits. The majority of the

refugees protesting have been employed
, durmg their stay in Yemen. -

Inequality

atment include refugees from
Irag and Sudan,

: Al refugees should be treated

less of their race, nationality,

investigate ar address eachcase.

' Diserlmination .
Refugees Refugees face discrimina-

| tion and harassment on streets. at work
and at school. Discrimination they have to

Refugees: Other refugees are gwen"
i - responsmﬂity of the Yem ‘ govemment

 cution or discnmmai

Yemen against the
been repor{ed 1o 1

Refugees It is comu
to be arrested or
to pay bribes
the refugees ha
never be?qn accounted

Yemeni gevérn ment, which

- dened dealing with refugees and displaced 1

Yemenis. UNHCR should take on the task

of finding a solution for the refu'gees._ -
UNHCR: Host countries that have

signed the 1951 Convention must grant

refugees refugee status, access to employ-
_ ment and other basic rights. Most of the

basic rights have been granted by the
Yemeni government. Granting nat;onahiy is
determined by a host country, so itis the!

Reiugees UNHCR mtemuonaﬁy and |

repeatedly avoided fully assisting the

m%ugees seeking resettlement in another ||

ry %
UNHCR Resetiferpem is a posszbie '

those interosted and will be forwarded to |

resettlement _counines UNHCR is willingto |

Al-Saeed Cultural
Forum holds
meeting in Taiz on
cleanliness

YT Taiz Bureau

A special meeting on cleanliness and
efforts in this respect was organized last
Thursday by the Al-Saeed Cultural
Forum at its headquarters in Taiz with
the governor of Taiz Qadhi Ahmad Al-
Hajri, along with representatives of
Qahira district, government authorities,
local councils, mosque preachers, man-
agers of schools and other prominent
figures.

The meeting’s aim was to pinpoint
issues concerning waste control and
cleanliness along with plans to ensure
that awareness is raised at the public
level of the hazards of wastes of all
kinds including remains of wrecked
cars, stones, dust, etc.

The participants agreed on the need
to have the Cleanliness and
Enhancement Fund participate in the
campaign to clean up the Qahira dis-
trict, using all resources available. They
have also agreed on the need to provide
the basic infrastructure services for var-
ious developmental and service-orient-
ed projects in the district.

The governor of Taiz Al-Hijri said
that “the issue of cleanliness is a reli-
gious and humane duty and is the
responsibility of every one.” He also
emphasized that President Saleh is

Agent Commission 5% on t

Hotel Names City 07 nights | 14 night Accommodation bed
08 days 15 days & breakfast

Istana hotel Kuala Lumpur/Malaysia $680 $910 Category *****

Corus Hotel Kuala Lumpur / Malaysna $630 $810;.., Category ****

Park Inn International Kuala Lumpur / Mal Category ***

Jakarta Hilton International | Category *****

interested in completing the largest
project of its kind to protect the city of
Taiz from the devastation of floods and
complete the Qahire fortress project and
of course resolve the problems of water.

He also announced that the President
instructed the pavement of 20 kms of
roads in Taiz and ordered the compen-
sation of those who had built houses
that violate the city’s plan.

Meanwhile, the attendants focused
on the important role local councils
should play to enhance living standards
and minimize unemployment and find-
ing areas to have cemeteries in. They
also agreed on the need to reduce
crowdedness of schools and pay atten-
tion to those living in inhumane condi-
tions in houses made out of zinc in
some areas of Taiz.

Among the issues discussed was the
protection of the environment and the
need to launch a campaign to have
every citizen of Taiz plant a tree in front
of his house. Mosque preachers present
at the meeting promised to focus on the
importance of justice and enforcement
of the law and discouraging the use of
live ammunition during wedding cere-
monies.

and sofiba

* Computer instruction for alf ages

SANAA l NTERNATIONAL SCHOOL

community’s duldren for 31 years'

YOUR CHILD AT SANAA INTERNATIONAL SCHOOL

Beautiful pupose-built facilities on a spacious 34 age site oy the edge of tawn
waith out-door /}fa\ area and equipment. Sparts facifities n)(fwfl( $

m A HIGH QUALITY EDUO\')’ION. IS WAITING FOR m

{ iz@!ds a double tennis cour, and an indoor muli-purpose area
for volleyball and basketball Bus sewvice available

* Perfomance-Based cumiculum for 5 years of age through secondary school
* Personalized education/smalf dass sizes

% Spedial afferings (AP Course/Exams, PSAT test music: art, dama & sponts)
* Craduates attend American, Canadlian, European, and Middle Eastem universities
& Accredited by the Middle States Association of Colleges and Schools (MSA)

% Spedific age approprate experiences for 2, 3 and 4 year olds
& Altractive premises near the French Embassy induding a gardens and play are:
* Certified experienced British teacher assisted by parapzof&s:onaic

qs

basketbal!

*+ School howrs are from 7:55 am. to 12:00 pm. (oo

Saturday through Wednesday

care-

CONSULTANCY

CARE International
is looking for an
experienced
consultant to carry
out Community
mobilisation training for project staff. The
consultancy will be carried out from 17"
March and last approximately 2 weeks.
Applications must be received by 10™
March. The target area is Amran
Governorate. For detailed Terms of
Reference please contact the CARE office
Tel. 01 504377 e.mail ¢

are(@yv.net.ye

Youth honored in
cultural competition

By FAEMIA AL-FOTIH
For THE YEMEN TIMES

Twenty-nine young people who
won in the fourth Rahmadan Cultural
Competition were recently honoured.

Abdualkareem Ghlab, the general
manager of the general administration
of the cultural and social activity in the
Ministry of Youth, said that “Honoring
the winners of the fourth cultural com-
petition has become an annual tradi-
tions and it has been established for
the fourth time. It aims at pushing and
encouraging young people to search
books for information in order to
develop their abilities, hone their skills
and enrich their information in various
fields.”

He also said “It has been noticed
that the number of participants has

considerably increased. The remark-
able thing also is the good number of
girls either in participation or winning.

Participants this year have reached
563 competitors.. Around 190 could
correctly answer the competition
questions.

Only 29 are selected as the prizes
are limited for 29 winners.

He concluded, “As proclaiming
Sana’a the Capital of Arab Cultural,
there are various activities represent in
poetry, story festivals and others. We
have many activities in all the gover-
norates. There is competition within
the governorate itself first and then
extends between the all the provinces.
What we look for is the support that
we used to have by Mr. Abdualrahman
AL-Akwaa, the Minister of Youth.”

'aliii’i"B‘tiiRimg Systems

HO: Jeddah tel: 6370036, fax: 6352173

Conditions:
Price per person on t

s Commercial Centers

Child under 12 years of age's ckage fair Al;Zl} « Car Sheds
T e Dackage e y Sanaa + Factories * Grain Storage  * Recreation Centers il s
Round trip tiqket Sanaa Kuala Lurr_\pur Sanaa - Sanaa Jakarta Sanaa Phone: 286364 - 285865 - 279235 - 295699 S 4 g Soreaaaa o 5 Off tl: 2;;533‘3 fax: 271638
Accommodation at the hotel mentioned above on bed & breakfast. Fax: 289568 s Farm Buxidmgs * Alrcraft Hangars s Showrooms _ sana a ice: te b 5
' 0 www yementrading.com

Transfer airport hotel or V.V. $30 sedan car. (2 adult + 1 child) email: bazara@y.net.ye » Service Centers + Power Plants « Warehouses email: sales@vementrading.com
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The Yemeni Company
for Industry and
Gommerce LTD.

The company was founded in 1970 as the
first Yemeni company producing biscuits.
Ever since, the company underwent massive
developments including the installation of
various machines, equipment, and appliances
and establishing new branches and producing
new goods in new lines of production. This
was all in order to cope with international
developments and to maintain the company's
lead and pioneer role in the market in this
specific field.

The company produces biscuits of various
brands, shapes, and sizes. It produces various
types of regular or chocolate-coated wafer
along with various types of sweets, cake, and
luscious cookies.

All products of the company enjoy very high
quality and match consumers' tastes. All of
them are also being produced appropriately
and in a clean environment. This is due to the
strict quality standards that have to be met
during all production phases. The company

~ also ensures that it selects the best human

cadres, trains them extensively, and enhances
their skills through training sessions in and
out of Yemen to guarantee that the products
are healthy and meet international standards.
The company also plays a major role in
supporting the national economy and other
social activities. The company believes in
that maintaining its pioneering position and
excellent reputation in the market can only
be done through continuous self-
development and by presenting products that
satisfy the tastes of consumers. |
"Hayati Baby Biscuits" is among those
products that does satisfy the desire of the
most beautiful segment of the community,

~ babies.

@@ﬁ

| Fortified with Vitamins:& Hinerals T

Doctors and Consumers come together at:

~ B\ N ;.
N " 3
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- The Yemeni Company for [ndustry and Commerce LTD. held its Third Forum for Baby
- Food Hayati with doctors and pharmacists at the conference hall of the Saced Mercury

. Totel in Sanaa la$t Sunday on 25 February amidst the presence of a large number of

OnsuMmers. »
\bdulfattah® Al-Aswadi, the Deputy Gene{aL[ Manager of the
‘ 5ts and stressed on the company's coneer for children as the
‘ged to continue providing the best products 1m?qualx£y and prices
row up healthy. He pointed out that the specialized authe?ntl,es and neports
awe shown that the "Hayati Baby Food" product mdeed;asustsim haalthy
of ¢l dn‘en and compensates malnutrition er lagk of nutrition.. ' |

emphaqwed that "Hayati Biscuits" is the (mmplemcntary food for the bdbry gseb;.deq

er's natural milk. \ E £ F 1
\I-~Aswadi concluded his statement by thaang the attendees and orgamzers for their

work and dedication to make the foruny a success, wishing them the bestt
sExperts in this field had their share in the forum as two scientific lectures were presented
on the lmponance of "Hayati Baby Food" for being the complemenlary food beside
mothers milk. The two lectures emphasized the importance of natural breastfeeding; for the
' and on the need for complementary food for babies after being breaé'éﬁ’ed by
m "Hayati Baby Food" to grow up healthy and strong. - .

( fﬁe benei):i,ts of the com (:}lcnts that resemble the "Hayatr Baby F’ooclr in
il ) aby an fact that it meets international standards and
e World Health Organization. The two lectures
lwahab Al-Ghorbani. the Geheral Manager
Dr. Ali Mahdi the Quality Advisor of the

Wdlscus mn' The session wa
mmendations and suggestions p
were e1l Nl sideration to make the best of them. R
1 The forum ended with a warm buff ';ta table at the ballroom of th&hoteI‘

several complementary samples and of herglfts were presented to the guests.

Features of "Hayati Baby Food™”

- Safe food product that is easy to prepare.

- Easy to digest and can be mixed with milk or boiling water.

- Rich with necessary vitamins and minerals for children to grow
healthy inoluding vitamins (A, D, and B).

- Constitutes of the iron mineral, which is useful for blood vessels.

- When used directly without adding milk or boiling water, it has a
delicious taste and dissolves in the mouth easily.
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Spacete! B remonnc b o ey

;Always Connected.

Phone Banking |

Spacetel Yemen Postpaid subscribers can now

settle their invoices through using the phone banking
service that the International Bank of Yemen
stands alone providing it via dialing:

(01 — 407070)

For more information please contact

Generation After Generation... 01 - 407030

Spacetel Yemen. Zubairy St., International Bank of Yemen Bldg., Sana'a, Yemen
Tel: (967) 73 333 333 - Fax: (967) 73 444 444 - P.0.Box: 4562

HTERIATIORAL

Better Taste .. Impossible
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Palestinian shops destroyed

Damage from Israeli
raid over $1M

EREZ, Gaza Strip, Feb 28
(Reuters) - The mayor of a Palestinian
town estimated on Saturday that the
damage bill from an Israeli army dem-
olition of some 120 Palestinian-owned
shops on the Gaza-Israel boundary
would come to more than $1 million.

Two army bulldozers backed by
four tanks on Friday ploughed through
the cluster of buildings which the
Israeli army said concealed a 60-metre
(180 foot)-long tunnel used by

Palestinian militants.
The stores leading up to Erez, a
heavily fortified Israeli industrial zone

Palestinians carry the body of Islamic Jihad suicide bomber Abed Khatab dur-

on the Gaza-Israel border, sold mainly
clothing, electronics and food and
drink to Palestinian workers who made
their way to their jobs in Israel through
the crossing.

“We need urgent help for these
people. They did not do anything,” said
the mayor of Beit Hanoun town,
Ibrahim Hamid, adding the damage
would run to more than $1 million.

The army spokesman said store-
owners could file for compensation.
But success for such suits by
Palestinians accused by Israel of hav-
ing abetted militants is almost unheard

ing his funeral at Deir al Balah refugee camp in Gaza Strip Feb. 28. A
Palestinian suicide bomber on a bicycle blew himself up next to an Israeli mili-
tary jeep in the Gaza Strip on Friday, but caused no casualties among its occu-

pants,the army said. REUTERS

A Palestinian boy makes his way over the rubble of destroyed shops near the

Erez crossing in Gaza Strip Feb. 28.Israeli forces uncovered a tunnel, used by
Palestinian militants for their deadly attacks, on the Gaza Strip boundary and
razed at least 120 Palestinian-owned shops nearby on Friday, witnesses said.

REUTERS

of.

“What a miserable situation. I did-
n’t only lose my shop. I also lost
$7.000 in goods,” said Hamdan al-
Mugqaiyad, a shopowner who received
summary notice to vacate the market
lane leading up to Erez before military
bulldozers ploughed in on Friday.

An Israeli army spokesman said
two Palestinian gunmen had used the

tunnel to sneak into the heavily forti-
fied industrial zone on Thursday and
kill a soldier before being shot dead by
security personnel.

Al-Agsa Martyrs Brigades, an
armed group from Palestinian
President Yasser Arafat’s Fatah faction,
claimed responsibility for the attack,
confirming its men used the tunnel.

Multinational force to help end civil wars

Africans agree on peacekeepers

SIRTE, Libya, Feb 28 (Reuters) -
African leaders agreed onSaturday to
set up a multinational force empow-
ered to interveneacross the troubled
continent to end civil wars or geno-
cide.

The African Standby Force would
be deployed at five regionalbases by
2005, expanding to a continental
force by 2010, adeclaration adopted
at an African Union (AU) summit
said.

Initially, it would involve some
15,000 AU troops, drawnprimarily
from the continent’s military power-
houses — SouthAfrica, Nigeria,
Kenya and Egypt, AU sources said.

With fragile peace efforts in the
continent’s manytroublespots, there
has been international pressure on
theEthiopia-based AU to take an
active lead in peacekeeping.

African leaders are keen to avoid a
repeat of mass killingssuch as the
1994 Rwanda genocide when
extremists from the Hutumajority
slaughtered 800,000 minority Tutsis
and Hutu moderates.

Heads of state and prime ministers
of the 53-nation AU whomet for two
days at the Libyan coastal city of
Sirte  unanimouslyapproved the
Common Defence and Security
Policy for Africa.

The rapid reaction force will have a
peacebuilding andhumanitarian role,
and may intervene unilaterally in the
eventof “war crimes, genocide and
crimes against humanity, as well asa
serious threat to legitimate order,” the
text said.

Mozambique President Joaquim
Chissano, current AU
chairman,called the new common
defence policy “a collective answer
tothreats, whether internal or exter-
nal, over the continent™.

“AFRICA NEEDS NO WMD"

Libyan leader Muammar Gaddafi,
who hosted the summit in hishome-
town, said “no country can protect

Libya’s leader Muammar Gaddafi

(L) and the President of Mozambique

Joaquim Chissano take their seats for the closing ceremony of the Second
Extraordinary Session of the Assembly of the African Union in Sirte Feb. 28.
African leaders have agreed to set up a multi-national military force empow-
ered to intervene unilaterally in serious conflicts around the troubled conti-

nent. REUTERS

itself with a nationalarmy, no country
can pretend to achieve security
alone”.

“In Africa, not a single country
needs...weapons of massdestruction,”
he added.

Libya stunned the world in
December when it announced
itwould dismantle its weapons of
mass destruction programme, in abid
to normalise relations with the West.

The new force will operate at the
bidding of an AU Peace andSecurity
Council. modelled on the U.N.
Security Council, whichwill be set up
at a March meeting in Addis Ababa.

The council will have 15 perma-
nent members, chosen for theirknown
respect for democracy and human
rights, AU sources said.

“The members should be an exam-
ple for what the African Unionseeks
to build in Africa: peace, security and

democracy.” onedelegate said.

Command structures,” staffing and
the criteria for deployingthe force
still need to be worked out, AU
sources said.

African leaders were due to

approve the force at last year’sAU

summit in Maputo but delayed final
approval amid questionsover how the
new army would be funded.

African countries have asked

“developed countries to footmost of

the bill, but the plan has not been
well-received. g

European Union Commission
President Romano  Prodi,
however,told the assembled leaders
on Friday the EU had pledged
250million euros ($312 million) “for
peace-support operations”under the
AU’s authority.

“It will provide a powerful, inno-

vative instrument tosupport African -

peacekeeping efforts and will lay the-
foundations for development in areas
of conflict,” Prodi said.

An EU spokesman in Brussels said
the funding was notspecifically for
the nascent African Standby Force.

POTENTIAL LOCAL SUPPLIERS,
CONSULTANTS & CONTRACTORS

Yemen is vulnerable to a range of natural hazards such as flash floods,
drought and earthquakes. The southern governorates are particularly prone
to floods. For people in the areas, floods erode the soil destroy houses and
damage people’s crops and livelihoods.

The Oxfam GB - Yemen office is currently working to help communities
minimize their vulnerability to the effects of natural disasters and how to
improve their ability to respond. To achieve this goal and in order to
respond effectively in case of any sudden emergency Oxfam is currently
developing a database of potential local suppliers, contractors and
consultants and requires potential candidates who are based in Sana’a,
Taiz and Aden (candidates based in the Aden city and governorate are
strongly recommended to apply). We require at least 3 years experience in
the following fields:

FOR CONSULTANTS:
Water Engineers
Civil Engineers
Accountants
Logisticians
Translators

Gender specialists

FOR SUPPLIERS & CONTRACTORS:

Water and sanitation equipment suppliers (Water pumps and pipes)
Borehole dritlers

Construction equipment suppliers

Transportation companies (trucks and vehicles)

If you are interested please forward a copy of your CV, qualifications and
references to
Oxfam GB Yemen P.O. Box 1045, Sana’a, Republic of Yemen
Fax no: 01 445 650 or email: mmalahy@oxfam.org.uk or
aal-thwari@oxfam.org.uk

Oxfam GB is a development, relief, and campaigning organisation dedicated to
finding lasting solutions to poverty and suffering around the world. We believe
that every human being is entitled to a life of dignity and opportunity; and we
work with poor communities, local partners, volunteers, and supporters to help
this become a reality. ’

Field Sales Representative

DHL Yemen, Ltd., is currently seeking for experience personnel in its Sana’a office.

Major Responsibilities

. Accomplishes sales targets.

. Monitor tariff and special rates and ensure correct and agreed rates are
implemented.

o Researches sales potentials and develop additional accounts or cash clients.

. Updates customers on company'’s services and provide solutions to their
express requirements.

. Write weekly and monthly reports.

Minimum Requirements
. 3-5 years experience in field sales.
U Proficient in English and Arabic, both spoken and written.
. Familiar with Microsoft Word and Excel.
. Bachelor degree in Sales and marketing or related fields.

If you meet the above requirements, please do forward/fax your resume to the following
address:

DHL Yemen Ltd.

Human Resource manager
Sana’a

Republic of Yemen

Tel: 967 1 441696 / 97 / 98 / 99
Fax: 967 1 441095

Deadline for accepting applications 10th March 2004

7

The post involves:

money

contractors etc.

British Embassy
Sana’a

VACANCY

A full time post is now available in the British Embassy, Management
Section for a Yemeni, or Expatriate, to fill the post of Estate
Management Officer, to work as part of a busy team managing the day to
day running of the Embassy and its properties.

= Property management and maintenance, housing, machinery etc. |
* Managing Human and Financial resources- ensuring value for
» Procurement: requisitioning of goods and services, liaison with

The successful candidate must have previous office experience, good
bureaucratic and IT skills, experience of procurement and good spoken
and written English and Arabic.
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Chickens
in western
Japan
positive to
birdflu test

TOKYO, Feb 28 (Reuters) -
Chickens shipped from a Japanese
poultry farm where a bird flu out-
break is suspected, showed positive
results to preliminary tests for the
avian influenza virus, a local govern-
ment said on Saturday.

The chickens were among those
shipped to a meat factory in the west-
ern prefecture of Hyogo from a farm
in nearby Kyoto Prefecture, where
over 28,000 chickens have died since
February 18, a Hyogo prefectural
official said. :

All the live birds from the Kyoto
farm were thought to have been
slaughtered for meat products at the
Hyogo factory, but some were found
to be alive and the prefecture con-
ducted the preliminary tests on them
on Saturday. the official added.

The news raises concern of anoth-

KUALA LUMPUR, Feb 28
(Reuters) - Malaysian police on
Saturday arrested 17 people, including
an opposition leader previously
detained under the Internal Security
Act, for protesting against the abuse of
police powers.

Suara Rakyat Malaysia (Suaram), a
non-governmental “organisation which
led the protest, said the activists were
detained when a 300-strong crowd gath-
ered to protest against cases of police
misconduct.

Bernama, the national news agency,
put police estimates of the crowd size at
80.

“It was a gathering to hand over a
memorandum on police wrongdoing,
which is in response to (Prime Minister)
Abdullah’s call to clean up the police
image,” said Tian Chua, vice president
of the opposition Parti Keadilan
Nasional, who was among those

South
Africa to

send guns
to Haiti -
newspaper

JOHANNESBURG, Feb 28
(Reuters) - South Africa plans to
send guns, ammunition and equip-
ment to Haiti President Jean-
Bertrand Aristide as he battles a
rebellion in the Caribbean state, a
Johannesburg paper reported on
Saturday.

South African police have
arranged to send 150 R1 rifles,
5.000 rounds of ammunition, 200
smoke bombs and 200 bullet-
proof jackets to Haiti next week,
the Afrikaans-language Beeld
said, citing a document it had
obtained.

Beeld said the old-fashioned R1
rifles were similar to French-made
rifles being used by Aristide’s

er outbreak, as there are live chickens police.
brought in from other prefectures at South African police and gov-
the Hyogo meat factory. ernment officials referred

It also puts into question why the
Kyoto farm had delayed reporting
the death of the chickens.

Health officials in Kyoto only
received reports about the dead
chickens at the farm on Thursday,
nearly a full Week after over 1,000
birds began dying daily.

Japanese media said the initial tip-
off was an anonymous telephone
call.

As a result, some 15,000 chickens
were shipped from the poultry farm
by the time initial tests for bird flu
produced positive results, although
none of the meat reached the retail
market, according to Kyoto govern-

Malaysian riot police use water cannon to disperse demonstrators outside the federal police headquarters in Kuala
. Lumpur on Feb. 28. Police fired a water cannon at demonstrators on Saturday to disperse about 60 people, including
activists and politicians, gathered to hand in a memorandum protesting against alleged police brutality and abuse of

power.

inquiries to Security Minister
Charles Ngakula, but his
spokesman Leslie Xinwa said he
knew nothing about the shipment
and that Nqakula was out of tele-
phone contact at a funeral.
President Thabo Mbeki angered
opponents by attending Haiti’s
200th anniversary celebrations in
January, saying Haiti, founded in
1804 by black slaves who over-
threw their French masters, was a
natural ally of African nations.
After his return, Mbeki offered
to help mediate between Aristide
and his opponents, who kept up

REUTERS

ment officials.

Japanese media quoted the head of
the Kyoto farm as saying he thought
the chickens were dying of pneumo-
nia and did not report the cases.

He was freed last June.

Suaram coordinator Eric Paulsen said
police fired water cannons after the
crowd failed to disperse.

detained.

Tian was previously held for two
years under the Internal Security Act,
which allows for detention without trial.

Malaysian Prime Minister Abdullah
Ahmad Badawi set up a commission to
address shortcomings in the police force
shortly after taking over last October.

violent demonstrations through-
out the 200th anniversary celebra-

Abdul Hadi Awang speaks at his
tions.

party’s headquarters in Kuala
Lumpur Feb. 28. REUTERS

VACANCY
ANNOUNCEMENT

The United Nations Development Programme (UNDP) invites Yemeni nationals to
apply for the following position for a duration of one year:

Webmasier

(ETS)

TOEFL.

Test of English as a Foreign Language

Next TestData: . May15, 2008 Duties & Responsibilities:
Locatian: AMIDEAST’.MQ'ers Straet #66, Sana'a e Gather, uniform and categorize information about UN agencies and UNDP into a recognizable
; ; form to be implemented as web pages.
Register locally at AMIDEAST by March 7, 2004 to take this exam! *  Post, update, format and organize content developed by staff of the Country Office (CO).
] ) o o ¢ Constantly review site to ensure all parts are functioning properly and that links are current.
The International TOEFL... only at AMIDEAST, Yemen's official ETS testing center e Execute structural changes at direction of CO staff and suggest ways to speed viewers’ access to

information. :

¢ Communicate through the IT Manager with RIM, other COs and UNDP HQ on the best practices
and design recommendations for the web sites.

e For the intranet development, conduct a comprehensive survey of the information being shared
by the CO staff, projects and programmes of the UNDP, and prepare a proposal for the intranet

AMIDEAST ... Yemen's One-Stop TOEFL Shop!
o TOEFL registration/information booklets

* TOEFL preparation materials 4 structure to be discussed with management.

» TOEFL software  Intranet structure should be under constant update in response to user needs and usage trends as
e TOEFL practice tests based on actual TOEFL tests shown by the statistics database. :

¢ TOEFL preparation classes (multiple levels) *  Provide electronic versions of photos and other images for use on the website and build and

o TOEFL registration—easy and hassle-free!l maintain an electronic photo library.

e Institutional TOEFL Program (ITP): The "local" TOEFL, offered weekly at AMIDEAST *  Monitor visitors to site and provide routine summaries of which pages are seen most/least and by
e International TOEFL test: AMIDEAST hosts the official test center in Yemen whom. Suggest ways to ensure that users are getting the information they need.

e Keep abreast of new technologies and design trends to ensure that the CO website is current and
that all the website’s capabilities can be exploited.

*  Register the site with major search engines to ensure increased access to information seekers
from around the world.

Visit one of our convenient locations:

AMIDEAST Sana'a AMIDEAST Aden Qualifications

Algiers Street #66 162 Miswat Street e University degree in computer science or equivalent

Tel: (1) 400-279, 80, 81 Khormaksar. Aden e Minimum 2 years experience on websites designing, internet techniques, securing websites and
FéX' (1) 206-9 42’ ’ Tel/Fax: (2)’232_3 45 telecommunications. Applicant should show a set of previously designed websites.

e Advanced knowledge on any website layout design (Flash, Photoshop, etc.), development design
(Macromedia Dreamweaver, Microsoft FrontPage, etc.), development languages (php, asp, etc.)
and web server management (apache, IIS, etc.)

*  Good Command of written and spoken English and Arabic.

E-mail: yemen@amideast.org E-mail: aden@amideast.org

Interested candidates who have the necessary qualifications and background for the above position
" " s may submit their applications by mail to Human Resources Unit.
www.amideast.org/offices/yemen
UNDP, P.O.Box 551 Sana’a/Fax: 44884 1/E-mail: registry.ye @undp.org
The deadline for receiving applications is Sunday, 14 March 2004
For further details for our vacancies you may visit our website at:
http://www.undp.org.ye/undp-vacancies.htm .

Educational Testing Service, ETS, the ETS logo, and the TOEFL logo are registered trademarks of the Educational Testing Service
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Words of Wisdom

The role of ethics is central to establishing
acceptable norms and relations among mem-
bers of the community. Degeneration of values
can only lead to more trouble. Even from an
economic point of view, high morals are impor-
tant. I can remember a time when many deals
were done on the basis of a handshake or a per-
son’s word. These days, you cannot depend
even on a notarized contract, unless you have
the power to make it stick.

Prof. Abdulaziz Al-Saqqaf, l;1951 -1999)
ounder emen Times

OPINION
Why is everything
politicized?

ust after the elections of the Yemeni Journalists

Syndicate (YJS) ended last week with the win o

Mahboob Ali and the 12-members board, some open-

ly expressed disappointment and dismay for the results

and claimed that the results were based on political
interests and resembled political struggle between the opposi-
tion and government.

Whether this is true or not is not as important as the fact that
we have become a nation that likes to politicize everything. I
was personally present when the elections took place, and saw
that, despite some technical difficulties, the election process
was honest and transparent.

Yet still many come out saying it was politicized giving the
impression that there must have been a conspiracy around the
whole event.

It is a pity to see that after so much hard work and efforts to
make the final stage of the journalists conference a success by
ensuring transparency and credibility in the voting process,
still that was not enough to avoid accusations that things were
done behind closed doors to guarantee this result.

The YIS elections is only one of tens of other stories in var-
ious institutions, unions, and even tribes. I remember an inci-
dent in which tribesmen from the very same tribe were killing
each other because of political differences and because of their|
members belonged to the ruling party while the other belonged|
to the opposition.

In extreme cases, partisanship and politics can even get into
the field of education when students would fight each other
because of political differences, and in rare causes teachers
may fail students because of political affiliations.

This is not what it is supposed to be!

Politicizing everything is not in the advantage of any side, it
is rather a negative phenomenon that emerged because of our
immature understanding of politics and political affiliations.

Belonging to a political party means that one believes in its
goals and works on achieving them through political circles,
not by enforcing his or her ideas on the rest regardless of the
others’ beliefs and convictions.

Our poor understanding of freedom has made us prey to our|
own freedom, which is not a healthy process unless we believe
in each others’ right to think and believe.

It is tolerance that we lack in our Yemeni society when it
comes to politics, and I am sure it was our political leaders
who contributed to this.

I remember an occasion when we were visiting a college in
one of the governorates near Sanaa and once we arrived to the
dean’s room, we were surprised to hear him saying that he is
launching a campaign for the ruling party within his colleague
to promote the party’s standing and support throughout the
instructions. )

I openly expressed my shock and surprise at what the dean
said and told him that this was supposed to be a college where
students come to learn and get education not be taught politi-
cal ideologies and other nonsense.

It is unfortunate that most of those heading such institutions
or public authorities do not believe that their professional
duties must be first and political affiliation second.

It will take time before we get rid of this outdated mentali-
ty, and this cannot happen unless there is new blood flowing in
key leading positions in our government, who know the value
of professional and honest work and never politicize as the ear-

lier generation did. .
The Editor
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EAST AND WEST

By JamiL ABDUL KARIM
Jjamil@yementimes.com

or expatriates or visitors
from the west, one of the
more startling things to see
here is how dogs come out
at night. Yes, in this capital
city, it seems, the dogs rule. Especially
the bony-ribbed ones at the neighbour-
hood dump, around the corner from
where my wife, my daughter and I live.

They look for food scraps, as do the
goats and cats that also visit the smelly
depot. What really hits, though, are the
people who patiently wait for our, or
anyone else’s, garbage, then scrounge
through it for anything to ease their
own gnawing hunger.

It’s something for westerners to think
about when the price of their gasoline
rises. Oil-rich OPEC countries will
soon trim production, which will raise
gas prices worldwide, to various
degrees, so that certain barons don’t
lose profit.

Yemen, which produces little oil, has
bigger worries. As you know, from cov-
erage in recent issues of The Yemen
Times, consumers are worried about
major hikes in commodity prices.
Whether it comes from the World
Bank, the government, or some antithe-
sis of Santa Claus, it matters little.
Higher costs are higher costs.

More dump visits

I’ve heard that some Yemeni fear the
price of their gas will rise 50 per cent.
The fact that it’s produced domestically
makes it all the more upsetting to them.
It may boost government coffers. but as
business costs will rise, and higher
prices will trickle down to other goods
and services. One has to wonder how
many more people will visit dumps. No
wonder the Yanks are doubling their
yearly food aid to $15 million.

Westerners, especially those who

read The Times, but don’t live in
Yemen, need to remember the only
social safety net here is begging. Those
of us who live here know how often the
poor, usually women and children, ask
for handouts on the street or at our
door. Several million Yemenis are also
migrant workers, mostly in Asia, send-
ing money home to their needy fami-
lies.

It’s something to watch, because
while politics in Palestine and Iraq is
predictably upsetting across this region,
it seems that nothing boils Yemeni
blood like what folks believe — rightly
or not — is the bombing of their econo-
my by policies that aren’t working.
Yemen'’s last major price hikes, seven
years ago, led to plenty of demonstra-
tors killed on the streets.

And it seems to me that, for the sake
of global security, the Middle East can’t
afford this quasi-democracy to become
undone. Yemen, poor orphan that it is,
may have a few terrorist insurgents. But
it’s also a bell-weather. That’s why
those 800 delegates from dozens of
countries, including UN chief Kofi
Annan, recently met here in Sana’a to
explore democracy and human rights in
the region.

But back to hunger. It kills 24,000
people worldwide. Every day. It’s
increasing in the poorest countries. But,
believe it or not in some developing
countries, obesity is also a problem. For
example, world health officials say one
in four kids in African countries like
Morocco, Zambia and Egypt are signif-
icantly overweight.

Getting fat, while the hungry beg,
and die, beside your table. What a loss,
since there’s plenty to go around for
everyone if distributed fairly.

How shall we live?

The problem of hunger

Living fat vs dying poor

What does this say to the rich west,
where obesity is now very much in

front of everyone, all over the news, not

to mention everyone’s mirrors? And

what does it say to those of us who live

in the developing world, but, for one
reason or another, have plenty to eat,
not to mention other material things
that meet our basic needs and usually
more? How then shall we live?

A slim build, I personally don’t con-
sider myself immune from the gluttony
in our time. I’ve put on 50 pounds in
the past 20 years. In my late teens, |

had just 140 pounds on my 6’ 1™ frame.

But this is about more than body
weight.

It’s a reminder that we’re all poor: if
not materially, then spiritually, or emo-

tionally, or intellectually, or in ways we

each know privately. So, in my family,
we make a point of skipping a meal or
two regularly, because there’s nothing
like a hunger pang to remind us of
these truths.

It doesn’t put food on anyone’s plate.

But it helps us identify in a small way
with the hungry. It helps us remember
‘There, but for the grace of God, go 1.’
And it helps shine the light on this
other poverty of spirit: the one that
knows no racial or cultural or geo-
graphic borders, the one that says, as
humans, we’re all starving beggars in
need of the same piece of bread. The
irony is that often people who have
more than they need materially, suffer
from these other hungers even more.
For those of you who could stand to
push yourself away from the dinner
once in a while, what do you think
about that? Care to join us sometime?

Jamil Abdul Karim (jamil@yemen-
times.com) is a Yemen Times editor.

Reflections column on page 14

What is Power Horse?

Power Horse is the health
energy drink that
stimulates physical and
mental performance.

It supplies the body with
readily usable energy and
vitamins and has unique
taste totally refreshes you.

The Power Horse effect
® Boost physical and
mental performance.

® Reduces recovery
period.

B Stimulates metabolism,
circulation and central
nevous system.

B Contributes to
detoxification of harmful
substances.

What makes power Horse
80 special?

Power Horse is composed
of Taurine,
Glucuronolactone,
Caffeine, Vitamins,
Carbohydrates and inositol,
Taurine is a natural and
very health substance that:

B Helps maintain the
functionality of the eye
photo receptors.
@ Helps the development
of the hearing.
B Helps lower blood
pressure,
Improves sperm motility
and increases proactive
capacity.

' M Decreases cholesterol
lever by lowering LDL
levels.

The ideal drink

to replenish your
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You can have Power Horse at all times specially at times when you feel tried or exhaust-
ed. So, for all businessmen and employees who want to perform at high concentration
levels and study comfortably for long*periods, for active housework, for all those who
exerciseand for people who want active days and nights!!!

DRINK POWER HORSE AND GIVE YOUR ENERGY A BOOST!!

energy aftera
long , tough day
of stress.
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By Hassan Al-Haifi

“What Business Is It of |
Yours, Mr. Bremmer?”’

hat was how a American correspondent began to
ask Paul Bremmer III, the de facto ruler of Iraq
now on behalf of the Bush Administration, why
should he decide for the Iragis if they wanted to
have the new Iraqi Constitution include anything
about Islamic Sharia’a (jurisprudence)?
Yes, Mr. Brenner, why should you intervene in every facet of
Iraq’s reconstruction fi Government or otherwise?
An obvious question to be asked of someone who is suppos-
edly there to make the invasion fi turned to occupation as
palatable as possible to the Iraqis, in preparation for their full
sovereignty and independence.
Or is the occupation indeed a fact of life that sovereignty, as
we understood it is as far away from Iraq for some time to
come.
Maybe it is just a clear expression of Amencan policy in
the areas in which an American sphere of influence is now
entrenched, thanks to the Holy Crusade against Islam, in all its
manifestations, which the Bush Administration has decided to
take up on behalf of the International Zionist Establishment.
It is the latter, which is absolute in its resolution to make Islam
the “archenemy of Western Civilization” and thus secure its
bloodline to the American taxpayers’ pockets, especially after
Israel’s usefulness to the West has considerably diminished
with the end of the Cold War.

But let us argue with Mr. Brenner on a more narrower sphere.
The outright rejection of anything to do with Islam in any
statutes of Moslem society, let alone the objection to Shari’a
as being a basis on which the Iragi Constitution rests, is inter-
preted by most Moslems, as a clear declaration of American
intentions to do away with Moslem culture altogether. '
Thus, Islam brought 9/11 to the forefront as grounds for this i
sometimes American animosity to the religion and its one bil-
lion followers.

The inclusion of Shari’a jurisprudence as a basis of mundane
legislation should really be viewed as a significant safeguard
against oppression and repression and quite frankly the
Americans should view this inclusion with greater objectivity,
if they are truly promoting a democratic regime for Iraq or any
other Moslem country.

For one thing, it should be borne in mind that Islam was born
as a social reform movement to counter oppression in all its
forms and to raise the standard of the malcontents of the

world.

Never mind that Moslem regimes are far from real application
of true Islamic jurisprudence in governance, and the underly-
ing cause of this has been the inability to put in place the
appropriate institutional framework that would oversee gover- |
nance as Islam would really have it. {
There are historical and sociological reasons for this, but this
does not mean that Islamic jurisprudence represents a digres-
sion of the rights of citizens of Moslem states, but in fact pro-
vides a justification for the enlightened Moslem body politic

to oppose any oppressive political order.

That is why very few autocratic regimes have found any

degree of longevity over the ages, because most regimes that
were oppressive were soon countered by movements that
sought to reinstate the stolen rights of the Moslem constituen- |
cies, based on the guarantees of civil rights and justice that |
Islamic jurisprudence is meant to deliver.

Thus oppressive rulers were put to the test by the extent to
which they have deviated from proper Islamic governance as
called for by Shari’a Law.

Of course, at present most Moslems have been subjected to so
much oppression and backwardness, thanks to the rule of
regimes bolstered by Western interests that backed many of
these regimes, that only a few are able to organize into the
effective opposition to the oppressive regimes that they are
ruled by, or even recognize that indeed they have overlooked
the fundamental responsibility of Moslem body politics to
uphold the rights that they are entitled to according to Islamic
Shari’a. |
On the other hand, Mr. Bremmer and many of the other icons
of the Bush Administration, would like the world to believe
that Shari’a entails Taliban “Orthodoxy” or Al-Qaeda militan-
cy, both of which are as foreign to Islam as Communist rule.
There is also a tendency to view Irag’s religious leaders as
being in the same league as the religious leaders of the Taliban
or Al-Qaeda.

First of all, the Taliban religious leaders are poorly versed in
Islamic jurisprudence and even their top leader, Mullah Omer,
never finished religious school and does not hold any genuine
credible credentials in Islamic jurisprudence studies.

The Taliban are no more than a rendition of modern Wahhabi
dogma, the followers of which must be reared from their very
young years to obey their mentors and reject all other princi-
ples that do not agree with the autocratic and sometimes even
repressive Wahhabi principles.

Even more enlightened Wahhabi followers have come to
reject the extremisms of their Taliban brethren and are looking
for greater rapport with the followers of the other sects of
Islam.

For sure Islamic Shari’a is not simply a dress code for women
or a penal code for non-marital sex, which is often the image
that Zionist promoters are disseminating about Islam.

It is a very comprehensive statutory foundation by whicha ¢
Moslem society is to be organized and regulated without prej-
udice to very important principles of human rights and civil
liberties for all the people under Islamic domain.

Religious leaders like Sheikh Sistani of Iraq are sophisticated

T —
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| and far above than to be likened to the mentally closed

Taliban or their likes.

They were after all also leaders of the Iraqis in their struggle
against Saddam Hugsein for a generation and sacrificed a lot
along with many of their followers.

They really have a feel for how Islamic jurisprudence should
be rightfully applied as a safeguard for a free and orderly soci-
ety.

But it seems that Mr. Bremmer is not endowed with any sensi-
ble feelings towards his subjects.

]
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A note to all businessmen.:

For THE YEMEN TIMES

.he 2004 World
‘Newspaper Advertising
Conference and Expo,
which was concluded in
-  Amsterdam, The
Netherlands on February 27 has come
up with a conclusion that newspapers
are the best advertising medium yet.

The event, which was held by the
Paris-based World Association of
Newspapers (WAN) with the partici-
pation of 440 individuals from 68
countries, has come out with this con-
clusion for a diversity of reasons after
extensive comparison of pros and cons
with all other advertising means.

Why newspapers are the best ad
medium

If there is one word that sums up
why newspapers have a bright future
as an advertising medium, the word
is—fragmentation, says Mr. O’Reilly,
Chief Operating Officer, Independent
News & Media PLC, Ireland, who also
opened the conference as its chairman
with an overview of the advertising
market and the major themes for
newspaper advertising executives
world-wide.

“The one major positive I want you
to take away is the invidious reality of
fragmentation, which is good for our
business, and bad for other media, but
particularly TV,” he says.

“Doubtless, all of you will have — at
some time - uttered the word in your
sales’ pitches. So it’s not new — but
unlike previously, were it was a future
forecast, it is finally happening today
as I speak, and happening at an alarm-
ing rate, thanks to deregulation and
rapid technological advances.”

What this means is “that newspa-
pers are the mass-market medium of
the future, and not the past. And that
is the central, albeit very simple),point
of today’s rallying call. As the market
— and particularly as TV-audiences -
fragment, the relative worth of news-
papers is enhanced dramatically, as
advertisers look for a medium that can
guarantee a large reach and reliable

demographic.”

Mr. O’Reilly added that he didn’t
expect the market to wake up to this
reality on its own and he urged a
proactive approach: “We must set our
sights on setting a new agenda, by
actively assessing our markets, by
understanding what fragmentation
means to us, and by developing sales
propositions that reaffirm newspapers
pre-eminence in the emerging media
landscape.”

He said newspaper people should
not blame others for negative percep-
tions around our industry.

“My sense is that we are allowing
that latent negative perception to exist,
because we fail to appreciate and
understand the quite seismic transfor-
mation that is occurring in the media
scene around us,” he says.

“We fail to truly understand the
inherent attributes, indeed the unique
qualities of a newspaper as an ever-
relevant, necessary platform for the
exchange of ideas and as a mass-mar-
ket channel to that ever elusive con-
sumer. Remember that oft-said quote,
“the window to the world can be cov-
ered by a newspaper”, which is as rel-
evant today as it was 100 years ago.

“And finally, we risk perception
becoming reality because, historically,
we as marketers have always under-
sold our medium, and by extension,
ourselves. Understatement or mod-
esty should not be our mantra.”

A better way to measure ad effec-
tiveness

Mattias Bodin, Advertising Sales
Director, Nerikes Allehanda, Sweden,
and Erik Wilberg, Managing Director,
Wilberg Management as, Norway
Scandinavians read a lot of newspa-
pers. And, thanks to a new web-based
system, the newspapers know a lot
about what advertisements appeal to
them.

The Research and Analysis of
Media (RAM) system, introduced in
2002, uses the internet to gather infor-
mation from reader panels and stores
and compiles it for easy analysis. The
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panelists, who represent the demo-
graphics of a particular newspaper,
are contacted by an SMS message to
their portable telephones and asked to
answer questions on-line about adver-
tisements that appeared in that day’s
paper. '

“When you have high internet pene-
tration, it’s a good tool for collecting
data,” says Dr Wilberg. “The main
topic was, how can we measure news-
paper advertising response quickly,
cheaply and with reliability.”

As the database now contains more
than 600,000 advertisement observa-

IDA to give $40M for
soil and water work

Exchange rate
for Yemeni Rial

Currency Buying | Selling
US Dollar 184.3100 | 184.5800
Sterling Pound | 342.5400 | 343.0400
Euro 231.0200 | 231.3600
Saudi Rial 50.9800 51.0600
Kuwaiti Dinar 625.4200 | 626.3300
UAE Dirhem 50.1800 50.2500
Egyptian Pound | 29.9400 29.9900
Bahraini Dinar 488.8900 | 489.6000
Qatari Rial 50.6200 50.7000
Jordanian Dinar| 260.1200 | 260.5000
Omani Rial 478.7500 | 479.4500
Swiss Franc 146.4300 | 146.6500
Swedish Crown | 25.1500 1.7053
Japanese Yen 1.7028 1.7053

Source: Central Bank of Yemen

tions from these panelists, as well as
information about the newspapers and
the panelists themselves, it is also a
good way to better understand how
various options—size, colour, place-
ment, creativity—impact effective-
ness. Reports can be ready in 48
hours. More than 25 Swedish newspa-
pers use the system.

Mr Bodin provided several exam-
ples of its value. For a food store
which bought a full-page ad each
week, the newspaper tested all the ads
they had placed for two months and
determined which drew the most read-
er attention. They also tried different
combinations and learned that two
half-page ads were observed more fre-
quently than the one full-page ad and
was therefore more effective for the
advertiser.

Some general findings on ad effec-
tiveness: If your target is young peo-
ple, use big advertisements. “You have
to shout louder to get the reach with
young people,” says Dr Wilberg.

Full-colour ads draw more attention
than black and white, but spot colour
has less importance, particularly with
older readers.

Right-side ads are observed slightly
more frequently than left-side ads. The
number of pages in the newspaper
appears to have little impact on
response. Ads in tabloids are general-
ly seen and remembered slightly more
frequently than ads in broadsheets.
And observation rates close to pay day
rises 10 percent to 12 percent.

Older people spend more time read-
ing newspapers than young people.
“We all know that, but this can vary
from paper to paper and its worth pay-
ing attention to. How can we get peo-
ple to pay more attention?

Don’t take no for an answer

Despite evidence to the contrary,
agencies remain unconvinced of the
strength of the regional press for brand
advertising, says Mr Anderson-Dixon,
Group  Advertisement  Director,
Northcliffe Newspaper Group, UK.

So Northcliffe Newspapers, which
groups 120 daily and weekly titles in
the UK, set out to convince them, and
the advertisers themselves.

In one year, the approach produced
3.5 million euros in brand advertising
from advertisers that had not used
their newspapers before.

Mr Anderson-Dixon detailed how
this was done. New sales teams were
created for supplements, niche mar-
kets, electronic publishing and, most
importantly, for client development,
which focuses on new markets, new
clients, and new platforms.

A supplement on household pets
drew 150,000 euros from pet suppliers
who had never advertised in the paper
before. A holiday supplement drew
tour operators for the first time. “By
appealing to clients directly, and to
their agencies, we secured over
200,000 euros in new business in
January,” says Mr Anderson-Dixon.

He said the philosophy was based
on five “commandments”—focus,
differentiation, research, creativity
and courage.

“Our focus is to challenge the think-
ing of agencies and clients,” says Mr
Anderson-Dixon. “All our efforts have
been to reposition ourselves as proac-
tive and innovative.”

“We should never forget that we
have powerful brands ourselves,” he
said, adding that it was important to
convey the emotive bond the newspa-
pers have with their readers.

“Get across to creative agencies and
media buying points the true nature of
our place in reader’s lives,” he says.

Newspapers are a mass market
medium

Globalisation and new technologies
are very good for the business of Mr
Alfiero Massimini, DMP
Organisafion, Italy business, which is
selling language teaching materials.

“For many years our courses were
only sold door-to-door or by direct
marketing systems. But the growing
globalisation, the development of new
technologies and the internet, has
increased the demand for language
teaching materials. For this we decid-
ed it was the right time for our cours-
es to be sold into the mass market,”
says Mr Massimini.

Good news for print: the company
decided to market its products in asso-
ciation with newspaper and magazines
in Europe and Latin America. The
campaign involves giving away the
first course free with a newspaper or
magazine and thus providing readers
with a risk-free trial. Mr Massimini
detailed two cases:

L’Espresso, a leading magazine in
Italy, which gave away 400,000 copies
of the first course of “Fast Forward,” a
VHS English course, and then sold
more than 100,000 copies of the sec-
ond. The collection sold more than 1.7
million copies, with an average of
more than 73,000 copies per week.

El Mundo, the second largest news-
paper in Spain, which offered the first
course of BBC English free, and is
now selling subsequent courses on a
weekly basis. By the end of the pro-
motion, El Mundo will have sold more
than 2.5 million copies for a total of 13
million euros. The promotion con-
tributed to a significant increase in the
newspaper’s sales as well— from
227,922 daily copies at the start of the
promotion, to 375,337 copies four
months later.

“Let’s be aware that just the idea of
giving away free the first issue is not a
gold mine in itself. It can be very risky
if your readers do not like the product.
To make a success you need a top
quality product, with a high perceived
value, sold at a very low price and,
most important, let your readers try it
for free,” says Mr Massimini.

Newspapers still the
best way to advertise

“Present a Wish”

In a crowded market where newspa-
pers have little credibility, the
Moscow Daily Moskovski
Komsomoletz set out to improve its
image, attract younger readers, and
prove to advertisers and their agencies
that it was an effective advertising
medium.

Borrowing a page from a Dutch
project featured at a World
Association of Newspapers’ confer-
ence, the paper created “present a
wish”, in which readers were encour-
age to send in their wishes via SMS
messaging, e-mail, voice mail and
even by post.

The wishes were posted on the web
site of Moskovski Komsomoletz web
site and in the paper; readers were
then encouraged to vote for the their
favorites weekly. And the newspaper
and its sponsors set out to fulfill more
than 200 of the wishes.

The project generated a 28 percent
increase in web traffic. A total of
14,242 wishes and 95,467 votes were
received. Some 114,000 names were
added to the database.

“It drew a great response from read-
ers, media, and advertisers,” says Ms
Doroshkova of the project, which won
the 2003 “Best PR Project of the Year”
award. Even better, the newspaper has
used the promotion to pursue new
advertisers—five long-term contracts
have been signed so far.

Bringing glamour back to print
advertising

“We are all facing a similar chal-
lenge. The newspaper advertising
industry has been losing ground to TV.
We-need a solution to handle this
problem,” says Ms Ayse Sozeri
Cemal, Head of Advertising Group,
Hiirriyet, Turkey.

For Hiirriyet, Turkey’s largest news-
paper, the solution was to create a
print advertising contest which it
designed and promoted to show that
creativity is not limited to TV adver-
tising, to draw the advertisers’ atten-
tion back to newspapers, and to bring
glamour to print advertising.

The contest, called Kirmizi (Red),
was designed to recognise consistent
users of print advertising and also to
encourage potential sectors to use
print advertising effectively. “One of
the main categories ‘was the use of
effective page layout” says Ms Cemal.
“This was a first for the Turkish adver-
tising community; because no other
advertising contest ever had such a
category.”

The contest, aimed at agencies and
at the individuals who prepare the
advertisements, was heavily promoted
with a four-month, multi-stage print
advertising campaign, a special meet-
ing for agency heads and top advertis-
er executives, and an industry wide
“Kirmizi Party” that drew close to
1,500 people from advertising agen-
cies, advertisers and media. “Our goal
was to introduce the award, encourage
participation, and compile a database
for further communications.”

The contest drew 661 entries from
72" agencies—and the Turkish
Advertising Agencies Association has
only 80 members. The awards show
drew 1,000 people.

The result? “The agencies have
acknowledged the need to put print
advertising back on the advertisers’
agenda,” says Ms Cemal.

“Our mission to bring glamour back
to print advertising has confirmed that
print advertising never really goes out
of style. The popularity of Kirmizi has
proved definitely that agencies and
advertisers never really forgot print,
they just need to be remind of its
value.”
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9 LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS AND BANKS,
NET OF PROVISION

Loans and advances to customers:
Overdraft facilities
Term loans

_ 1,030,580
1830546

860,709
1,497,164

(b) Provision for impairment

Since no dividends were received from the investments in UBAF — Curacao and Arab
Banking Group — Bahrain during the last few years and no dividends are expected to
be received in the coming years, a full impairment provision was taken for the
balances of those investments because their net present value is nil.

11 DEBIT BALANCES AND OTHER ASSETS

The Bank's Board of Directors, in its meeting held on 30 December 2002, resolved
to comply with the instructions of H.E the Deputy Prime Minister the Minister of
Finance in his letter dated 4 September 2002 to the Bank's management to increase
the capital of the Bank by YR 500 million in two equal installments from the
Government's share of net profit of the Bank for the years 2002 and 2003.

16 INCOME TAX PAYABLE

Amounts due to the Tax Authority

Balance at 1 January

Charged for the year in the Statement of Income

Total amounts due to the Tax Authority

Suspended interest (note - c)

Total provisions for losses on loans and
advances and suspended interest

Net loans and advances to customers and banks |

Gross non-performing loans and advances at 31 December 2003 amounted to YR
1,048,218 thousand (2002 - YR 902,519 thousand)

(a) Subordinated loan to UBAF

The loan of US $ 588,094 represents the Bank’s participation in a subordinated loan
extended to UBAF (Paris) by its shareholders and carries an interest rate of LIBOR
+1%. Although the interest on this loan is being paid regularly on time, part of the
principal amount had been rescheduled recently to 4 June 2007 and the remaining
part to 3 March 2008. The Bank's management decided to approve the request of
UBAF (Paris) to reschedule the loan with the same previous conditions

As aresult the Bank’s management, taking a conservative and prudent view, has fully
provided for the principal of the loan. The balance of the loan as on 31 December
2003, is stated using the exchange rate prevailing at that date.

(b) Provision for losses on loans and advances

In accordance with Article (85) of the Banks Law No. (38) of 1998, which came into
effect on 27 December, 1998, and Article 9 (j) of the Income Tax Law No. (31) of
1991 as amended by Republican Decree Law No. (12) of 1999, any provisions for
~ losses on loans and advances made by a bank in compliance with the regulations of
the Central Bank of Yemen in this respect, are not subject to the provisions of any
income tax law and are allowable as a deduction in arriving at the taxable income.
In accordance with the Central Bank of Yemen, these allowable deductions also
include suspended interest.

Details of movements in the provision for possible losses on loans and
advances during the year were as follows:

Amount paid during the year

Total income tax payable

Commercial papers discounted 204,046 2002
Total amounts due from private sector customers (i) 2,561,919 ) YR’000
Loans and advances to Banks Prepaid expenses and other debit balances 4,512
Subordinated loan to UBAF-US$ 588.094 (note - a) 105,198 Interest receivable 212,514
Total amounts due from Banks (ii) 105,198 Capital costs of new branches 2,891
Total loans and advances to customers Real estate properties acquired from customers,

and banks (i) + (ii) 2,667,117 net of provision 29,234
Provision for losses on loans and Sundry debit balances, net of provision 28,247 36,134
advances (note - b) Total debit balances and other assets 254,192 285,285

The balance of real estate properties acquired from customers is net of a provision of
YR 480 thousand (2002 — YR 480 thousand).The valuation of these properties is in
accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Yemen.

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET OF
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Freehold | Leasehold | Furniture Motor | Swift &

Land and | Improve- & [Vehicles | Compu- Total

buildings ments | Equipm- ters

ent
: YR’000 YR’000 YR’000| YR’000 | YR’000 YR’000

Cost or valuation:
At 31 December 2002 | 1,517,485 24,705 138,389 | 49,289 99,831 (1,829,699
Additions during
the year - - 4,366 28,427 5,539 12,241 50,573
At 31 December 2003 | 1,517,485 29,071 166,816| 54,828 | 112,072 |1,880,272
Depreciation
At 31 December 2002 21,223 6,307 50,308 | 34,683 56,721 169,242
Charge for the year 7,564 2,691 12,200 6,377 13,941 42,773
At 31 December 2003 28,787 8,998 62,508 | 41,060 70,662 | 212,015
Net book amount
At 31 December 2003 | 1,488,698 20,073 104,308 | 13,768 41,410 (1,668,257
At 31 December 2002 | 1,496,261 18,398 88,081| 14,606 43,111 [1,660,457

Depreciation is calculated on the basis of the rates set out in the Council of Ministers’
Resolution No. (144) of 1999.

a) Revaluation of property

Freehold land, land leased from the Government and buildings on freehold and
leasehold were revalued at their open market value for existing use on 1 December
1999, effective from 31 December 1999, by an independent professional real estate
firm. In accordance with International Accounting Standard no. (16), the method

2003 2002 used to present the revalued amounts is that the cost and related accumulated
= - O p

Ss;‘f")f‘;; Gf;%‘:", Yg%‘;‘") S)?;ffg[')g G;S%'Z; Yi;%?(ll depreciation as at 31 December 1999, were eliminated and the revalued amount has
Balance at 1 January 841,335 | 35,292 | 876,627 | 699,323 | 30,918 730,241 been considered to be the new gross carrying amount.
Revaluation of opening balance
in foreign currencies 4,892 656 5,548 | 99,838 664 | 100,502 13 DUE TO BANKS
Amount utilized during the year. (7,671) -| (7,671) | (2,435) -1 (2,435) 2003 2002
Adjusted opening balance 838,556 35,948 | 874,504 | 796,726 | 31,582 | 828,308 YRJOOO YR’000
Amounts recovered of loans
previously written off (note 23) | (41,630) | 9,589 | (51.219) |(19,833) | 4,046 | (23,879) E“"fgt al?d demand accounts ‘f—é'_fii T
Provision for the year (note 25) | 124,536 | 16,671 | 141,207 | 64,442 | 7,756| 72,198 OCal banks _6,5¢ ;
Charged to the income statement | 82,906 | 7,082 | 89,988 | 44,609 | 3,710| 48,319 Foreign banks . 20041 20,103
Balance at 31 December 921,462 | 43,030 | 964,492 | 841,335 | 35,292 876,627 Total due to banks 35,605 28,950

a) Charge for the year

The charge for the year has been calculated on the basis of the net profit for the year. In
accordance with the letter of H. E. The Minster of Finance to the Tax Authority dated
17 April 2000, the tax assessment of the Bank for each year shall be based on the results
as disclosed by the Bank’s financial statements audited by an external auditing firm.

b) Prior year tax assessments
The Bank received on 22 April 2003, the final tax clearance for the income tax liability
for the financial year ending 31 December 2002.

17 OWNER’S EQUITY

a) Authorized capital

The authorized share capital amounting YR. 2,100 million (2002 — YR 2,100 million)
consists of 2,100 thousand shares of YR 1,000 par value each. (2002 — of 2,100
thousand shares of YR 1,000 par value each).

b) Declared and paid capital

The authorized share capital amounting YR. 2,100 million (2002 — YR 1,850 million)
consists of 2,100 thousand shares of YR 1,000 par value each. (2002 — of 1,850
thousand shares of YR 1,000 par value each).

c¢) Net profit distribution
In accordance with the provisions of the Public Corporations and Establishments Law
No. (35) of 1991, the net profit, after income tax, shall be allocated as follows:

o 15% to statutory reserve.

o 15% to general reserve.

0 65% to the Government for its share of profits.

o 2% to employee’s incentives.

o 3% to employees' social fund

d) Surplus on revaluation property reserve
The difference between the revalued amounts of the freehold land and the buildings and
their net book value as at 31 December, 1999 has been credited to this account

e) Cumulative changes in fair value reserve

In accordance with the provisions of IAS 39 Financial Instruments — Measurement and
Recognition, the differences between the fair values and the book values of the
"available for sale" investments are recognised in the cumulative changes in fair value
until they are sold, collected, disposed off, or until they are determined to be impaired,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised is included in the
statement of income for the year .

18 CONTRA ACCOUNTS AND OTHER COMMITMENTS, net

Management has decided to provide for the general provision for performing loans , At 31 December 2003 Gross | Covered by Net

and contingencies including watch loans at the rate-of 2% ( 2002 — 2%). 14 CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS Commitments margin | commitments
2003 2002 YR’000 YR’000 YR’000

(c) Suspended interest . = YR’000 Commitments on pehalf of

This represents interest on non-performing loans and advances in accordance with the Current accounts 9,040,736 | 8,073,888 customers for which there were

Central Bank of Yemen regulations and which is recognised as revenue only when col- Savings accounts 19,703,209 | 17,225,730 corresponding liabilities by the

lected Term deposits 13478627 | 12,000,608 customers concerned:

’ Other deposits 472,629 Documentary letters of credit 3,995,538 919,123 3,076,415
Deposits for documentary letters of credit, - Letters of guarantees — customers 3,734,687 982,783 2,751,904
guarantees and others 1,913885 | 1,118,600 Letters of guarantees -

Balance at 1 January Total customers’ deposits 44,497,218 | 38,891,455 correspondent banks 4,505,447 - 4,505,447
Amounts written off during the year Customers’ acceptances 160,271 - 160,271
Recovered during the year Credit cards 20,273 11,979 8,294
Suspended during the year 15 CREDIT BALANCES AND OTHER BALANCES Total contra accounts and other
Balance at 31 December | 2003 commitments 12,416,216 | 1,913,885 10,502,331
- At 31 December 2002 Gross | Covered by Net
10AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS Accrued interest payable 231,809 Commitments margin | commitments
These comprise investments, available for sale, in the following foreign Unclaimed balances (note - a) 179,395 YR’000 YR’000 YR'000
companies: Provision for employees' leave pay Commitments on behalf of
Provision for off-balance sheet items (note - b) , customers for which there were
Ownership No. of Due to the Owner (the Government) (note - ¢) 221,260 corresponding liabilities by the
Percentage stjna:;gsso: 2003 2002 Employees bonusvin net profit : SUStOmers concermad:
o Employees share in net profit Documentary letters of credit 2,646,435 494,160 2,152,275
% YR'000 | YR'000 Provision for contingent liabilities (note-33) Letters of guarantees — customers 2,103,936 621,757 1,482,179
Unquoted investments in UBAF Group Sundry cre.dlt balances - Letters of guarantees -
UBAF — Curacao — A Shares of US § 1 each | 0.788% | 1,497,200 | 17,982 | 17,982 Total credit balances and other balances 978,550 885,937 correspondent banks 2,190,554 5 2,190,554
UBAF — Curacao — B Shares of US $ 1 each 0.783% | 234,650 2,818 2,818 . Customers’ acceptances 320,846 - 320,846
UBAF — Curacao — C Shares of US $ 1 each | 1.371% | 528,250 6344| 6344 | @) Unclaimed balances ) Travelers’ Chequgs 79.889 - 79889
Total investment in shares in UBAF Group 2260,100 | 27,144 | 27,144 This amount represents balances that are over 15 years old and have not been claimed Credit cards 7155 5683 4.472
Other unquoted investments by the beneficiaries. Management is reviewing the likelihood of these amounts being Total contra accounts and other : - 5
surab Banking Group — Bahrain ' 0844 % 2067| 2067 |  claimed and based on the outcome of their review, it will consider the amount that | commitments 7348815 | 1,118,600 6.230.215
Arab Financial Services Company—-Bahrain .. . . . s s s s » s
(note- a) 0.167% 20.734|  20.124 should be transferred to the Ministry of Finance in accordance with the relevant
Total other unquoted investments 22,801 22,191 article in the Banks Law. 19 INTEREST ON LOANS AND DUE FROM BANKS
Total available for sales investments 49,945 49,335 m
Less: Provision for impairment (note —b) (29.211) | (29.211) b) Provision for off-balance sheet items e 2,002
Net book value of investments 5003 2002 __YRoo0 YR’000
available for sale 20,734 20,124 = a Interest on loans and advances to customer ’ .
YR'000 YR'000 and banks .
(a) Arab Financial Services Company —.Bahl_'ain . Balance at 1 January _ ‘ . 29,846 21,972 Interest on loans and advances to customers 246,000 189,610
The fair value of the investment in Arab Financial Services Company — Bahrain was Revaluation of opening balance in foreign currencies 815. 822 Interest on commercial papers discounted 13212 19.412
calculated based on the net present value of the estimated future cash flows repre- Provision charged during the year (note -25) 31,980 14,081 Interest on other facilities 1,353 2,052
sented in the dividends received from the company which have consistent nature SI’(:VISIOI’] wr:iit:eg back gunng the year (note -23) 54_}8;’910 (2790824?6) Interest on loans to banks 2881 3,226
using a discount rate of 3%. The fair value of the investment in Arab Financial ianies 8 ceemoer : ’ Total interest gnbloakn s and advances to . 263466 214,300
i 2 i customers and banks . - X
Sgrvmezsoggmé)él;ylI—ZBsahramhas of 31 December 2003 amounted to US$ 11.25 per ¢) Due to the owner (the Government) otk on deposits Wik Tl Banks -
share & ' 23 per share). 2003 2002 Interest on current accounts 8,740 13,814
The following table shows the movement in the Arab Financial Services Company — YR'000 YR'000 Interest on call accounts 2,309 4,754
Bahrain durine the vear: Balance at 1 January 417,189 423,719 Interest on deposits 177,365 208,474
g fhe year: Add: Total interest on deposits with foreign banks 188,414 | 227,042
2003 Government's share in the profit for the year 471,260 444,189 Interest on deposits with local banks .
YR 000 Transferred to capital {250,000} (250,000) Interest on reserves balances with the Central
Balance at 1 January Net Government's share of the profit for the year 221,260 194,189 Bank of Yemen 305,591 259,443
Exchange difference Less: amounts paid during the year (417,189) (200,719) Total interest on deposits with local banks 494,005 486,485
Fair value at 31 December Balance at 31 December 221,260 417,189 Total interest on loans and due from banks 757,471 700,785
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AUDITORS' REPORT TO H.E VICE PRIME MINISTER THE MINISTER OF FINANCE
THE NATIONAL BANK OF YEMEN

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the National Bank of Yemen (The Bank)
LUHIPOSEL LT e DANce SHeet as 01 31 Decemoer 200 % ana e rejated statements of mcome, cash Hows

and changes in owner's equity for the year then ended and the notes to the financial statements in the pages
These financial sta P
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. These Standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting

are the r y of the Bank's management. Our

made by as well as the overall financial

and the

statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The financial statements, in our opinion, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial posuhon of the
Bank as at 31 December 2003, and the resuits of its operahons its cash ﬂm\s and changes in owner's equity
for the vear then ended in accordance with Internati

We also conﬁm| that, in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Bank and the

of the report of the Board of Directors relating to these financial

are in
o seas
Dahman Awadh Daliman, FCCA
of Dahman. RSM

25 January 2004.
Aden, Republic of Yemen

required for the purpose of our audit.

Registered Licensed Accountant No. 384

ith. We have obtained all the information and explanations which we

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND STATEMENT OF PROFIT
APPROPRIATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 December 2003

STATEMENT OF CHANCES IN OWNER’S EQUITY FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 December 2003

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AFTER
ZAKAT AND BEFORE INCOME TAX

Provision for income tax

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Earnings per share

STATEMENT OF PROFIT APPROPRIATION

Transfer to statutory reserve

Transfer to general reserve

Government’s share in net profit for the year

Employees’ share in net profit for the year

=008 2002 Reva:.t:)al; Statutory | General Cum::la‘; prgfe' :
5 t 1 { 1
Note YR' 000 YR' 000 — Capital | Reserve | Reserve |Reserve [changes| for the
. | in fair year Total
Interest on loans and due from banks 19 757,471 700,785 A value
A eserve
Interest on trea_syry bills — - 2’306.’625 1,938,883 YR'000 | YR'000| YR'000 | YR'000 | YR'000| YR'000| YR’000
Interest on certificates of deposit with :
the Central Bank of Yemen 747,400 625,532 At 31 December 2001 1,600,000 | 639,762 | 265,626 | 350,728 2,856,116
3811496 3,265,200 Restatement in accordance
Less: Cost of deposits 20 | 2136767 | 1,776,589 :ﬁ.”"h.!AS;%?Ofits o 16,392 16,392
Net interest income 1,674,729 1,488,611 the disposal
Commissions and fee income on : of available for sale investments (4,398) (4,398)
banking services 21 316,589 | 236,613 e _— 4959
Income on available for sale investments - Net{)rofit for the year - : 683,367 | 683.367
Protit from disposal ot available tor Transfer to statutory reserve 102,505 - -1(102,505) -
sale investments & Transfer to general reserve - [ 102,505 -1(102,505) -
Gain on foreign currency transactions : 79,708 ! Government's §hare in net profit - - -1(444,189) | (444,189)
2 = > Transfer to capital 250,000 - -| 250,000
Other operating income 71347 38,581 Employees' share in net profit = > E 5 -| (34.168) | (34.168)
NET OPERATING INCOME 2,142,373 1,817,759 At 31 December 2002 1,850,000 | 639,762 | 368,131 | 453,233 | 18,923 - 13,330,049
1 Restatement in accordance
with IAS 39
OPERAT!NG EXPENSES Realised profits from the
Commissions and fee expenses on disposal of available for sale
banking services 18, 322 15,788 investments
i 7 Net movement in fair value
Sengr_al and administration expenses for the year i B i i 810 i B0
rovisions Net profit for the year - . - - 725,015| 725,015
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES Transfer to statutory reserve 108,752 - -|(108,752) =
Transfer to general reserve - (108,752 -((108,752) -
NET PROFIT BEFORE ZAKAT Ty e e PO : e R Y01
AND INCOME TAX Employees’ share in net profit - - - = -] (36,251) | (36,251)
Zakat paid At 31 December 2003 2,100,000 | 639,762 | 476,883 | 561,985 | 19,533 -13,798,163

Balance at 31 December

BALANCE SHEET AS

<

OF 31 December 2003

2002

YR’ 000

ASSETS

Cash in hand and reserve balances
with the Central Bank of Yemen

4,547,801

Due from banks

14,829,786

Treasury bills, net

14,936,545

Central Bank of Yemen

Certificates of deposit with the

5,450,000

and banks, net of provision

Loans and advances to customers

1,774,360

Available for sale investments

20,124

Debit balances and other assets

285,285

accumulated depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, net of

‘ :254 tisz v

1,660,457

4& 699 - 43,504,358

TOTAL ASSETS
—
LIABILITIES AND OWNER’S EQUITY I
LIABILITIES s
.
Due to banks 13 35,605 28,950
Customers' deposits 14 44 497,218 | 38,891,455
Credit balances and other balances 15 978,550 885,937
Income tax payable 16 390,392 367,967
TOTAL LIABILITIES 45,901,765 | 40,174,309
.
OWNER’S EQUITY _
Capital 17 2 100,060 | 1,850,000
Surplus on revaluation of property reserve 17 639,762 639,762
Reserves 17 1 038, 868 821,364
Cumulative changes in the fair value reserve | 17 19538 18,923
TOTAL OWNER'S EQUITY 3,798,163 3,330,049

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNER'S EQUITY

49,699,928 | 43,504,358
.

COMMITMENTS, net

CONTRA ACCOUNTS AND OTHER

The attached notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements

ST/\TEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
g December 2003

18 | 10,502,331 | 6,230,215

The attached notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements

Auditors’ report attached,

Abdul Rahman
Mohammed. Al-Kohali
Chairman and General
Manager

Khaled Ali Khaina
Deputy General Manager

M

Sami Abdul Hamid
Mackawi

First Deputy General
Manager

. 2003 2002

YR 000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES | = |
Net profit for the year before zakat and income tax 1,150,407 | 1,084,334
Adjustments for: .
Provisions for loan loss and contra . |
accounts made during the year '1-?'3,1'8? 86,279
Provisions for loan loss and contra . .
accounts written back during the year | 30,908
Income tax paid 251,009
Zakat paid 33,000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 39,399
Operating profit before changes in assets —
and liabilities related to operating activities: (1) 895,095
CHANGES IN BANKING ASSETS AND LIABILITIES = |
Reserve balances with the Central Bank of Yemen 432,966
Due from banks maturing after three months . 770,142 | (2,720,007
Treasury bills maturing after three months | 50,100 5
Loans and advances to customers and banks | (517.4686) 242,518
Debit balances and other assets 31.093 76,442
Net (increase) in Assets (2) I 2,276,874 3,471,933
CHANGES IN BANKING LIABILITIES ,
Due to banks 6855 (45,096)
Customers’ deposits 5,605,763 5,044,223
Credit balances and other liabilities . 64,669 53,745
Net increase in liabilities (3) 5677087 5,052,872
CASH FLOWS (USED IN) INVESTMENT ACTVITIE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment _ (B0,573) (52,418)
Net Cash flows (used in) investing activities (4) 50,573 (52,418)
CASH FLOWS (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1
Government’s share in the net profit forthe year ]_ {471,260) (444,189)
Increase in the capital 250,000 250,000
Employees’ share in the net profit for the year {86,251) (34,168)
Net cash flows (used in) financing activities (5) (257,511) (228,357)
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents (1+2+3+4+5) 3,999,459 2,195,259
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 32,859,884 | 30,664,625
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 36,859,343 | 32,859,884
Consist of:
Cash in hand and reserve balances with
Central Bank of Yemen 7,468,727 4,547,801
Due from banks 13,056,019 14,829,786
Treasury bills and certificates of deposit with 1 :
the Central Bank of Yemen 25,029,346 | 20,386,545
Reserve balances with the Central Bank of Yemen (6,222.874) | (3,712,331)
Due from banks maturing after three months 2,421,775 (3,191,917)
Treasury bills maturing after three months 50,100 -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 36,859,343 | 32,859,884

The attached notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements

The Bank's Board of Directors, in its meeting held on 30 December 2002, resolved
to comply with the instructions of H.E the Deputy Prime Minister, Minister of
Finance in his letter dated 4 September 2002 to the Bank's management to increase
the capital of the Bank by YR 500 million in two equal installments from the
Government's share of net profit of the Bank for the years 2002 and 2003 (note 15-

c).

The attached notes 1 to 37 form an integral part of these financial statements

1 INCORPORATION AND ACTIVITIES

The National Bank of Yemen (The Bank), which was incorporated in Aden in 1969,
is wholly owned by the Government of Yemen. The Head Office of the Bank is at
Queen Arwa Street, P. O. Box No. 5, Crater, Aden, Republic of Yemen and is
registered under Registration Number 1748. The Bank undertakes all banking
activities through its head office and 27 branches spread all over the Southern and
Eastern Governorates and through two branches in Sana’a, and one in Hudidah.
The Bank had 588 employees as on 31 December 2003 (31 December 2002: 592
employees).

In its meeting held on 25 January 2004, the Bank's Board of Directors approved the
financial statements of the Bank and decided to submit them to the relevant
authorities for approval to publish them.

2 PREPARATION BASIS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Accounting
Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (JASB) and the
interpretations of the Standing Accounting Committee of the IASB, the current
local prevailing laws and regulations and the rules and instructions issued by the
Central Bank of Yemen.

There are no significant differences between Iaternational Accounting Standards
and those required by the Central Bank of Yemen except for the following:

1) The adoption of minimum fixed percentages for losses on loans and
advances in accordance with the Central Bank of Yemen circular no. (6) of
1996 and circular no. (5) of 1998;

ii) The inclusion of the general provision for risk calculated on the performing
loans in the general provision for loans and advances rather than including
it within the Owner’s equity.

The effect of these deviations is immaterial on the financial statements of the
Bank as on 31 December 2003.

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied on a consistent basis are as follows:

a) Accounting convention

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention as
modified for their revaluation of land and buildings to market value and the
measurement of available for sale investments to the fair value. The provisions of
the International Accounting Standard (39)- Recognition and Measurement have
been applied from January 2002.

b) Foreign currencies

i) The Bank maintains its records in Yemeni Riyals. Transactions in other
currencies are recorded during the financial year at the prevailing exchange
rates at the value dates of the transactions. Balances of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are
re-valued at the prevailing exchange rates on that date. Gains or losses
resulting from revaluation are taken to the statement of income.

ii) The differences arising from the re-measurement of "available for sale"
investments to fair value which relates to changes in foreign exchange rates
are considered as part of the change in fair value. Accordingly, these
differences are not taken to the statement of income, but are rather taken

directly to Owner’s equity.
iii) The Bank does not enter into forward exchange contracts.

¢) Revenue recognition

i) Revenues are recognized on the accrual basis. However, in order to comply
with the Central Bank of Yemen Circular no. (6) of 1996, the Bank does not
accrue interest on non-performing loans and credit facilities. When an
account is treated as non-performing, all uncollected interest relating to the
three months prior to categorizing the loan as non-performing is reversed
from income and recorded as uncollected interest.

ii) In accordance with the Central Bank of Yemen guideline no. (2) of 2002,
any provisions written back are included under "other operating income".

iii) Dividends on available for sale investments are recognized when declared.

d) Treasury bills and certificates of deposit with the Central Bank of Yemen
Treasury bills issued by the Central Bank of Yemen on behalf of the Ministry of
Finance are stated at their nominal value, adjusted for any unamortised discount.
Certificates of deposit with the Central Bank of Yemen are stated at their nominal
value.

e) Valuation of investments

All investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration given including acquisition charges associated with the investment.
After initial recognition, investments which are classified as "available for sale"
are measured at fair value. The gain or loss arising from a change in fair value of
such investments is recognised directly in equity until the financial asset is sold,
collected or otherwise disposed off, or until the financial asset is determined to be
impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity
is included in the statement of income for the year.

f) Provision for losses on loans and advances and contingent liabilities
In order to comply with the Central Bank of Yemen circulars no. (6) of 1996 and
no. (5) of 1998, provision is made for specific loans, overdrafts and contingent
liabilities, in addition to a percentage for general risks calculated on the total of
other loans, overdrafts and contingent liabilities after deducting balances secured
by deposits and banks’ guarantees. The provision is determined based on periodic
comprehensive reviews of the credit portfolio and contingent liabilities.
Accordingly, the provision is made in accordance with the following rates:

Performing loans including watch loans 2%

Performing contingencies including watch accounts 1%

Non-performing loans and contingencies:

Substandard debts 15%
Doubtful debts 45%
Bad debts 100%

Loans and advances are written off by debiting the provision, if procedures taken
towards their collection prove useless, or if directed by the Central Bank of Yemen
upon review of the portfolio. Proceeds from loans and advances previously written
off in prior years are credited to the provision. Loans and advances to customers
are presented in the balance sheet net, of provision and uncollected interest.

g) Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation

Property comprising land and buildings are recorded at their revalued amounts.
Equipment are recorded at cost on the date of purchase. Cost includes the purchase
price and related expenses.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Other property and equipment items are stated at
cost or revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation is provided on all property, plant and equipment, other than freehold
land, at rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value based on
prices prevailing at the date of acquisition, of each asset over its expected useful
life using the straight line method at the rates shown below:

Buildings on freehold land 2%
Vehicles 20%
Furniture and equipment 10%
Computers and software programs 20%
Security vaults 2%

Years of lease or estimated useful
life whichever is lower.

Improvements to leasehold property

h) Real estate properties acquired from customers

In accordance with the Banks Law no. (38) of 1998 and the instructions of the
Central Bank of Yemen, real estate properties acquired from customers in
settlement of loans are included in the balance sheet under “debit balances and
other assets” using the value at which these properties were acquired less any
decline in their value. Any decline is charged to the statement of income.

i) Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities and commitments, in which the Bank is a party, are presented
off-balance sheet under “contingent liabilities and commitments” as they do not
represent actual assets or liabilities of the Bank at the balance sheet date.

Jj) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of preparing the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash in hand, cash balances with the Central Bank of Yemen other than
statutory reserve balances, demand deposits with other banks and investments in

treasury bills which are due within three months from the issuance date and
certificates of deposit with the Central Bank of Yemen.

k) Taxation

Taxation for the year is provided for in accordance with the Income Tax Law no.
(31) of 1991 and its amendments and the provision of article no. (85) of the Bank's
Law no. (38) of 1998.

1) Zakat
The Bank pays zakat, in accordance with the relevant laws, to the government
which decides on its allocation.

m) Related party transactions

Disclosures are made in the financial statements of loans and advances and
contingent liabilities granted to related parties and in particular members of the
Board of Directors and companies in which they own more than 25% of the capital.

n) Fiduciary assets
Assets held in trust or in a fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the Bank
and accordingly are not included in these financial statements.

o) Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date an assessment is made of whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or portfolio of assets is impaired. If this evidence
exists, the recoverable amounts of the assets or group of assets is determined and
any impairment losses are recognised immediately in the statement of income
based on the present value of the anticipated future cash flows.

p) Fair values

The estimated fair value of interest-bearing items is based on discounted cash flows
using interest rates for items with similar remaining maturity. No fair values are
estimated for deposits with no fixed maturity as their balances are payable on
demand.

For investments where there is no quoted market price, a reasonable estimate of the
fair value is determined by reference to the current market value of another
instrument which is substantially the same, or is based on the expected cash flows
or the underlying net asset base of the investment.

q) Trade and settlement date accounting

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date, i.e. the date that the entity commits to purchase the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

4 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND MANAGING THEIR RELATED
RISKS

4.1 Financial instruments

a) The Bank’s financial instruments are represented in financial assets and
liabilities.  Financial assets include cash balances, current accounts and deposits
with banks, treasury bills, certificates of deposit with the Central Bank of Yemen,
investments, and loans and advances to customers and banks. Financial liabilities
include customers’ deposits and balances due to banks. Also, financial instruments
include rights and obligations stated in contingent liabilities and commitments.

b) Fair value of financial instruments

Based on the valuation of the Bank’s assets and liabilities stated in the notes to the
financial statements, the fair value of the financial instruments do not differ
fundamentally from their fair values at the balance sheet date.

¢) Forward contracts
The Bank does not enter into forward foreign currency buy or sale contracts.

4.2 Managing related risks
a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect
the value of the financial instruments. The Bank performs a number of procedures
to limit the effect of such risk to the minimum level by:

» correlating interest rates on borrowing with interest rates on lending.

* considering the discount rates for different currencies when determining

interest rates.
* controlling the matching of maturity dates of financial assets and liabilities.

b) Credit risk
Loans and credit facilities to customers and banks, current accounts and deposits
with banks and rights and obligations from others are considered as financial assets
exposed to credit risk. Credit risk represents the inability of these parties to meet
their obligations when they fall due. In order to comply with Central Bank of
Yemen circular No. 10 of 1997 pertaining to the management of credit risk
exposure, the Bank adheres to certain minimum standards in order to properly
manage its credit risk.
In addition to the standards stated in the mentioned circular, additional procedures
applied by the Bank to minimize the credit risk exposure are:

e preparing credit studies on customers and banks before dealing with them

and determining their related credit risk rates.
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» obtaining sufficient collateral to minimize the credit risk exposure which
may result from financial problems facing customers or banks.

* follow-up and periodical reviews of customers and banks in order to
evaluate their financial positions, credit rating and the required provision
for non-performing loans.

e distributing credit portfolio and balances with banks over diversified
sectors to minimize concentration of credit risk.

¢) Exchange rate risk

Due to the nature of the Bank’s activity, the Bank deals in different foreign
currencies; hence it is exposed to exchange rate risk. The Bank attempts to
maintain a balanced foreign currencies position in compliance with the Central
Bank of Yemen instructions and the requirements of Central Bank of Yemen
circular no. (6) of 1998 which specifies that individual foreign currency positions
shall not exceed 15% of the Bank’s capital and reserves, and that the aggregate
open position for all currencies shall not exceed 25% of the Bank’s capital and
reserves, (note-34).

5 CASH IN HAND AND RESERVE BALANCES WITH THE
CENTRAL BANK OF YEMEN

2003 2002

YR'000 YR’000
Cash in hand
- In local currency 518,277 435,292
- In foreign currencies 479,779 266,108
- Cheques purchased, net 247,797 134,070
Total cash in hand 1,245,853 835,470
Reserve balances with the Central Bank of Yemen
- In local currency 2,608,198 2,127,275
- In foreign currencies 3,614,676 1,585,056
Total reserve balances with the Central :
Bank of Yemen 6,222,874 3,712,331
Total cash in hand and reserve balances with the
Central Bank of Yemen 7,468,727 4,547,801

In accordance with the Yemeni Banks Law, the Bank is required to maintain statutory
deposits with the Central Bank of Yemen at stipulated percentages of its demand,
time and other deposits (10% in local currency and 20% on foreign currencies).
Deposits in local currency carry interest at rates determined by the Central Bank of
Yemen.

6 DUE FROM BANKS

2002

Due from the Central Bank of Yemen and other YR’000
local banks
Current accounts with Central Bank of Yemen
- In local currency : 11 852,751
- In foreign currencies . 309,659 231,673
Total current accounts with the Central Bank :
of Yemen 1,020,696 1,084,424
Less: Provision for outstanding reconciling items (18,115) (18,115)
Net current account balances with Central ‘
Bank of Yemen 1,002,581 1,066,309
Current account balances with local banks 1,194 510
Total due from the Central Bank of Yemen and otffjel" . o
local banks 1,003,775 1,066,819
Due from foreign banks and other financial

_institutions e
Current and demand account balances . 1,614,183 2,153,392
Less: Provision for outstanding reconciling items _ (27.894) (31,504)
Time deposits 10,466,005 | 11,641,079
Total due from foreign banks and other -
financial institutions 12,052,244 | 13,762,967
Total due from banks 13,056,018 | 14,829,786

Time deposits include an investment-linked deposit made with a foreign bank for US
$ 1,000,000 (YR 184,300 thousand) to be held for five years and carries a fixed
interest rate at 4.5% for year one. Thereafter, the interest rate is indexed to LIBOR
and is calculated based on a predetermined formula which has an upper and a lower
barrier.

7 TREASURY BILLS, NET

2003 2002

YR’000 YR’000

Treasury bills due within 90 days 19,890,381 15,165,821
Treasury bills due within 182 days 50,260 -
Total nominal value 19,940,641 | 15,165,851
Less: Unamortised discount {291,295) (229,276)
Net book value 19,649,346 | 14,936,545

The treasury bills have maturity of three to six months and carry interest rates ranging
from 13.0% to 14.0% (2002: 13.0% to 14.0%). In accordance with the instructions of
the Central Bank of Yemen, treasury bills which mature within a period not exceeding
three months are considered as part of cash and cash equivalent assets.

8CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT WITH THE CENTRAL BANK OF
YEMEN

2003 2002
YR 000 YR’000
Certificates of deposit — 91 days 5,380,000 5,450,000

Certificates of deposits are amounts deposited with the Central Bank of Yemen
having a maturity of three months and carry interest rates of 14 %. In accordance
with the instruction with the Central Bank of Yemen, such certificates of deposit are

considered as part of cash and cash equivalent assets.
_>
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20 COST OF DEPOSITS

b) 31 December 2002

Commercial Preliminary Court against former employees and customers of the Bank

ASSETS Less than |[From3to]  From 6 Over Total relating to irregularities and default. in settlements of amount_s due respectively.
3 months | 6 months | months | 1 year Where there are legal cases filed against the Bank at the respective courts, manage-
Interest on savings accounts . . to 1'year - - ment fully and/or partly provides for such cases in the financial statements.
Interest on time deposits A YR'000| YR'000| YR'000| YR’000 YR’000 )
Total interest Cash in hand and reserve balances
with the Central Bank of Yemen 4,547,801 - - - | 4,547,801 34 SIGNIFICANT FOREIGN CURRENCIES’ POSITIONS
21 COMMISSIONS AND FEES INCOME ON BA Due lrom banks 1.007.869 142459 | 2,049,404 ~19.523.785 | The Central Bank of Yemen circular no. (6) of 1998 establishes limits for positions
I Cenmcges of deposit 5,450,000 N N 1 5.450,000 in individual foreign currencies as well as an aggregate limitation for all currencies. °
Loans and advances to customers and These limits are 15% and 25% of capital and reserves. The Bank had the following
Commissions on documentary letters of credits banks, net of provision 99,664 46,986 | 279,682 |1,348,028 | 1,774,360 significant net exposures denominated in foreign currencies:
Commissions on letters of guarantee Investments available for sale - - - 20,124 20,124
Commissions on transfer of funds I&mtlﬁsssﬂs 36,671,879 | 190,439 | 3,328,146 [1,368,152 [41,558,616
Commissions on acceptances Do 16 Banks 28.950 _ - _ 28,950 YR’000
Commissions on cheques Customers' deposits 22,534,169 | 5,071,013 [ 11,251,851 | 34,422 38,891,455
Banking services fees TOTAL LIABILITIES 22,563,119 | 5,071,013 [11,251,851 | 34,422 |38,920,405 United States dollar 174,408
Other services fees Pound sterling 117,918
Total commissions and fee income on banking 30 AVERAGE INTEREST RATES ON ASSETS AND LIABILITIE.S Swiss Franc 1.540
services 316589 a) The average interest rates on assets and liabilities applied during the Euro 151,727
22 GAIN ON FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS year 2003 were-as follows: Saudi Riyal o 200202
: Assets Yemeni us Saudi | Sterling Auareqate forel = P - Ea8 170, 2
Riyal Dollar Riyal | Pound NG ggregate foreign currency positions 1757 667538 [19. 646,650
Revaluation differences on foreign currency % % % % % The dollar exchange rate at 31 December 2003 was 184.30 YR/US$ (31 December
trar)sactlons_ . - Reserve balances with the Central 2002: 178.88 YR/US$)-
Gain on foreign exchange trading transactions Bank of Yemen 13.00
Total gain on foreign exchange transactions Due from banks:
23 OTHER OPERATING INCOME Current accpunts - 0.62 - 0.47 1.49 35 CAPITAL COMMITMENT
el . L 163 8.85 2.00 Capital commitments at 31 December 2003 amounted to YR 54 million (2002-nil)
2002 Treasury bills 13.99 - - - - P! :
YR’000 Certificates of deposit with the Central
Provision for loan losses no longer required ﬁa"k Otf Yem?" };'gg s : £ z 36 CAPITALISATION OF THE BANK
(note 9-b) . 23,879 Sl : : As part of the Government financial and administration Reform Programme and the
ggx;rs;gn(;%rté)f{?il)ance shesbitems: f/longer 7029 Due to banks: - - - - - preparation of the Bank for capitalization, the Council of Ministers issued in its
L 2 Customers' deposits 13.00 0.69 0.59 2.1 1.16 ; ; : -
Provision for outstanding reconciling items no 2 megtmg hc.eld on 25 July 2000, resolutlf)n No. (175) of 2000 which sppulated that
longer required (BCCI) - capitalization of the Bank to be according to the Bank's latest financial statements
Sundry income 7,673 b) The average interest rates on assets and liabilities applied during the and on the basis of 60% for a strategic investor, 20% for public subscription and 20%
Total other operating income . 38,581 year 2002 were as follows: for the Government.
24 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES - - - The Minister of Finance has subsequently issued a Ministerial Decision No (486)
’ Assets Yemeni us Saudi | Sterling s . ! p 3 :
2002 Riyal| Dollar Riyal| Pound Euro dated 4 September 2000 in which he appointed a committee, under the chairmanship
YR’000 _ % % % % % of the Deputy Minister of Finance, and entrusted with it the responsibility for taking
Salaries, wages and related costs 391,786 ';95‘:"’?\?3'3”‘:93 with the/Central 1 66 the necessary steps to implement the Council of Ministers’ resolution.
Depreciation of property and equipment (note 12) 39,399 032 fr%m%r:::s- 2 . : . -
\7\/‘?3?;" and electricity Eg,gg? Current accounts - 0.85 - 1.41 2.80 37 COMPARATIVE FIGURES
) Time deposit 13.00 1.64 2.40 3.92 2.73 : : anlaseif
Repairs and mainlenance 14716 D'L’;em"';)‘;?‘sl‘('::‘ : : 2 = : Certain of the prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the
Telephone, telexes and postage 21,301 Treasury bills 13.99 - - - - presentation in the current year.
Transportation and communication 14,088 Certificates of deposit with the
Promotions and publications 9,154 Central Bank of Yemen 14.00 5 2 2 7
Computer maintenance expenses 13,841 Loans to customers 18.00 6.50 = ¢ =
Trsifiing 12,949 Sl i 13.00 120 1 279 -
Taxes and fees 1,436 = - ; -
Donations 4,288
Stationery and printing supplies 11,999 31 DISTRIBUTION OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, CONTINGENT
Loss on disposal of properties acquired from LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
customers 1,266 s etrihit T : bt
- e . a) The distribution of the asset t liabilities and
Other general and administration expenses . 32591 28,170 ) ¢ a i 31D © ]2; sezzoaénd hablhfml:ls an.d contingen w i
Total general and administration expenses 643702 611,362 commitments as at ecember wereas Tollows:
25 PROVIS'ONS Manufac- | Agricult- Trade Service Finance| Personal Total
turing ure
YR’000 YR'000 YR’000 YR'000 YR'000] _ YR'000| _ YR'000
ASSETS
Provision for losses on loans and advances Cash in hand
(note 9 - b) andesene
Provision for off-balance sheet items (note 15 - b) the Contra
Provision for employees' leave pay Bank of Yemen - - | 7.468,727 7,468,727
Provision for contingent liabilities (note-33) Due from banks - 13,056,019 -/ 13,056,019
Provision for old cheques stock g:;zzgte‘z"; net - [19.649,346 -] 19,649,346
Total provisions deposit 5,380,000 5,380,000
Loans to
26 ZAKAT customers and
banks, net of
_provision 50,111 - | 1652577 520 499,445| 2,202,653
Investments
Zakat expense for the current year — paid available for sale - - - 20,734 20,734
Total Assets 50,111 - | 1.652,577 520 |45574,826] 499,445 47,777,479
27 EARNINGS PER SHARE LIABILITIES
Due to banks - - 35,605 35,605
Customers'
deposits 3,601,559 | 282640 | 2,183,086 | 2,676,189 | 411,595| 35,342,149 44,497,218
Net profit for the year g;t;lr :I;f)clcl::l;z 3,601,550 | 282,640 | 2,183,086 | 2,676,189 | 447,200| 35,342,149 44,532,823
Weighted average of number of shares and other
(due to the increase from December 2003) commitments 226,915 | 4,653,184 - | 5,087,127 752,962| 1,696,028|12,416,216
Earnings per share
b) The distribution of the assets and liabilities and contingent liabilities and
28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS . . ) commitments as at 31 December 2002 were as follows:
These represent transactions with certain related parties (government entities, direc- }
tors and officers of the Bank, their families and companies of which they are prin- Manufac- | Agricult- Trade | Service | Finance| Personal Total
cipal owners) who were customers of the Bank during the year. The terms of these turing ure
: ) YR'000 YR'000 YR'000 YR'000 YR'000] _ YR'000] _ YR'000
transactions are approved by the Bank’s management. ASSETS
. . . . Cash in hand
The year end balances included in the financial statements are as follows: and reserve
—— balances with
o 2003 the Centra
B000 Bank of Yemen 4,547,801 4,547,801
Board members and parties related to them ?;z;f,'; t?iﬁ:, kﬁet . }3;352;232 - 12:332:;&2
Loans and advances, gross Certificates of
Customers’ deposits deposit - - 5,450,000 5,450,000
; Loans to
Interest income for the year customers and
Interest expense for the year banks, net of
isi 237,824 - | 1.106,865 3,339 426,332 1,774,360
29 MATURITIES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES oG
a) 31 December 2003 available for sale - - - - 20,124 20,124
ASSETS PR Y e——y R —— Over Total I?;aal ﬁ.ﬁ'?éss 237,824 - | 1.106,865 3,339 |39,784,256|  426,332| 41,558,616
3 months | 6 months months 1 year Due to banks 28,950 28,950
to 1 year Customers'
YR'000| YR'000| YR'000| YR'000| YR'000 deposits 821,378 93,115 | 2,729,113 | 1,818,216 -| 33,429,633 | 38,891,455
Cash in hand and reserve balances Total Liabilities 821,378 93,115 | 2,729,113 | 1,818,216 28,950] 33,429,633 38,920,405 Tel . 02-53484/2 5360 5 /2 537 5 3
with the Central Bank of Yemen 7,468,727 - - - | 7,468,727 ggg‘é?hifm“"‘s 4
Due from banks 10,634,244 | 2,237,475 -| 184,300 |13,056,019 A .
Tremsury bills tosemoE S0 - HocieEic commitments 223,708 703 | 4,117,130 | 1,446270 | 711,787| 849217| 7,348,815 Fax = 02-2521 26, 253606, 255004
Certificates of deposit 5,380,000 - - - | 5,380,000
Loans and advances to customers 32 TRUST ACTIVITIES P_ o . Box: 5 C rate I= Aden
and banks__net of provision 779,934 | 346,306 | 364,291 | 712,122 | 2,202,653 The Bank does not hold nor manages assets for or on behalf of other parties except 2
Investments available for sale - - - 20,734 20,734 : : : .
TOTAL ASSETS 43,862,151 | 2,633,881 | 364,201 917156 |47,777.479 | LOF the housing project which is managed on behalf of the Government. www.natban kOfyemen .Com
LIABILITIES u
Dus to banks 36,605 - - | 35605 | 33 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES Swift: NBOYYESA
ustomers' deposits 25,071,540 | 6,385,980 [ 12,824,200 | 215,498 |44,497,218 ~ : :
TOTAL LIABILITIES 25,107,145 | 6,385,980 | 12,824,200 | 215,498 |44,532,823 The Bank has filed a number of legal cases with the Public Fund Court and the




14

1 March, 2004

Press

Al-Wahda weekly 25
Feb.2004.

Main headlines

- Journalists demand the government
for securing decent living circum-
stances

- Discussion of resuming American-

Yemeni agricultural cooperation
- Minister of waters and environment:

The law of structuring and organiza-

tional regulation of the ministry to

be issued soon
- Deputy Technical Education and

Vocational Training minister: We

are negotiating with the World Bank

and the European Common Market
on their support for education strate-
gy

- Call for creation of a prosecution
specialized in issues of waters and
environment

- Tourist agreement between Yemen
and Italy signed

- American development support for

Yemen would increase in future to

enhance level of partnership

Columnist Yahya Tahir al-Hakeem
says in his article the convening of the
third general conference of the
Journalists Syndicate represented an
important turning-point in the life of
the Yemeni journalists and their union-
ist entity whose performance has to be
developed to be incompatible with the
status of the syndicate at the forefront
of the civil society organisations and
the democratic system as it is the union
of freedoms and rights and bearer of
the responsibilities of enlightenment
and democratic awareness in the soci-
ety.

The Yemeni journalists have con-
firmed their solidarity for the realiza-
tion of their active existence. They
have scored victory in over most ele-
ments of disappointment and managed
to present a pure image of the spirit of
the profession and thus their confer-
ence was a good example of the suc-
cessful syndical work.

The negative image that prevailed
the preparatory stage for the confer-

ence a despite the great mobilization of
journalists from various aspects of the
political spectrum and from all cities
of Yemen. The image was full of suc-
cesses by virtue of the great efforts
exerted by the colleagues in the super-
vising committee, the conference
chairmanship body and other commit-
tees. The great success was achieved
to a motive for the new leadership to
work with the same spirit of hard work
for the realization of more giving that
would achieve gains for the journal-
ists, especially those that have been
waiting for a long time.

Al-Sahwa weekly, 26
February 2004.

Main headlines

- Waiting for a new price dose

- Al-Kuhlani refuses to abide by pros-
ecution order,

- Islah condemns threatening Nasher

- Islah general secretariat of Islah’s
letter to journalists conference,

- Your efforts the first tributary for
change and defence of rights and
freedoms

- Parliament and Shoura approve
Sana’a Grouping

- For fear from bird flu, Yemen
returns Chinese chickens shipment
Columnist Zaid al-Shami says in his

article the existing economic policies

based on raising prices and throwing
on the citizens the burdens of the eco-
nomic reform, has proved the failure
of those policies because they have led
to increase suffering of the people and
an economic failure despite of the gov-
ernment’s insistence on the alleged
successes. The volume of unemploy-
ment expanded and the rate of poverty
jumped up, investment shrunk and
incidents of suicide increased. The
services of health and education have
also deteriorated. Nothing was able to
solve our problem, neither internal
borrowing nor external loans and the
only thing they are proud of is the
national currency value although its

value ranges between stability for a

short period after which to drop.

It is known that peoples’ oil wealth

would yield prosperity and develop-
ment for their sons except in our coun-
try. Since the discovery of oil we have
been facing problems and crises. Oil
products prices are raised, sometimes
under pretext of increase in world
prices and at other times because they
have dropped and the state is need for
covering its expenditures and there
must be some price doses and always
the citizen is the victim and the loser as
is asked to announce his applause to
the programs that rendered his life into
hell.

Al-Balagh weekly, 24
February 2004.

Main headlines
- In his interview with Al-Arabia TV
channel, president Saleh: Prince

Abdulla was understanding and as I

perceived he was not well aware of

the construction of the barrier

- Zionist tourist company embroi-
dered bedding of the biggest hotels
of Iraq with the six-pronged star

- Academics and lawyers criticize the
sales tax law

The political editor of the newspapem
says in an article the visit of the presi-
dent to the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
has helped to defuse the crisis that was
to destabilize security and stability in
the region. The president’s talks in the
Saudi kingdom was not confined to
agree on what has been done on bor-
ders but extended to the establishment
of a bilateral action according to cer-
tain mechanisms adopted by con-
cerned authorities in both countries,
especially those entrusted with the
question of managing the border areas
in a manner making them bridges for
communication and for protecting
security and stability of the neighbour-
ing countries.

As the security premonition forms a
joint concern for both sides and due to
the geographic and logistic reality in
the region, neither of the two sides is
able to undertake the question of
securing the borders individually par-

organization.

The Embassy of the United States of America announces for a job opening within its

Human Resources Assistant

The position is located in the Human Resources Section, of the management Office,

ticularly that the realistic facts confirm
that both countries represent a strate-
gic depth for each other.

The statement issued at the end of
the meeting of Riyadh has reflected
clearly that the two countries leader-
ships have comprehended all those
facts to establish for a joint action that
would make the borders points for
communication rather than separation
between the two peoples.

Al-Shoura weekly,
i organ of People’s
i % Forces Union of Yemen
wsom 25 Feb.2004.

Main headlines

- Ahmed Salem Ubeid disappears in
mysterious circumstances

- More than 100 girls disappear dur-
ing the last year

- Civil Service Fund, violation of
workers rights

- 20 March, a World Day for the free-
dom of Palestine and Iraq

- Endowments office in Aden still
closed down

- Oil general trade union appeals to
the executive bureau of the union to
defend workers rights

Columnist Jamal A’'mer says in his
article in the mid of last February the
Shoura Council discussed the foreign
policy of our country. because the mat-
ter does not go beyond finding a work
for members of the council, the discus-
sion changed into a dialogue of the
deaf and many members considered it
an opportunity for proving the nation-
al fervor through criticizing the king-
dom of Saudi Arabia and showing
meaningless bravery.

Employees in our foreign ministry
are the last ones to know about the pol-
icy of their country because the policy
is molded according to the atmos-
pheres and the decisions about it is that
of its moment. This is perhaps what
explains the floundering of the foreign
policy of our country.

The political decisions, small and
big, are made outside the authority of
the foreign ministry and they come
ready-made for implementation.
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Is corruption
our heritage?

American Embassy, under the general supervision of the management Officer.
Employee will serve as the main assistant to the American Management Officer in all
HR issues. Responsible for recruiting Locally Engaged Staff and US Citizens for all
kind of positions in the Embassy. Advises the MANAGEMENT Officer on all kind of
new hiring and personnel regulations and responsible for drafting the updating policies
that compliance with all kind of changes. Post’s sole position classifier and makes sure
that all positions are properly classified using the new Computer Aided Job Description
(CAID) toolkit.

Required Qualifications:

Education: Completion of Secondary school is required. Some University level
education is highly desirable.

Prior Work Experience: From four to six years of progressively responsible
experience in the field of personnel Administration.

Language Proficiency: Level IV (fluent) in English and Arabic is required.
Knowledge: A good working knowledge of post’s Classification Guides, applicable
portions of 3 FAM, and US Government Position classification theories.

Abilities: Must be personable, tactful, and able to develop and cultivate possible
sources of job applicants for a variety of positions. Possess good judgment and be able
to maintain effective working relationship with employees and their supervisors.

Grade/Salary: * EFM/MOH/Non Ordinarily Resident: FP-05 (to be confirmed by
Washington)
* Ordinarily Resident: FSN-9 (at full level)

How to apply: All interested nationals should complete OF-612 or submit a current
C.V. (with awards, recommendation letters, copies of degrees earned) that addresses
the qualification requirements of the position, as listed above, and sent it to the
Embassy Personnel Office, American Embassy, Dhahr Himyar Street, P. O. Box 22347,
Sana’a, Yemen. Tel: 303155, no later than March 09, 2004.

NOTE: All ordinarily resident applicants must be residing in country and have
the required work and residency permits to be eligible for consideration.

By Yahya Al-Olfi

alolfi@hotmail.com

> emen, the
* ancient abode of
the Semitic race,
witnessed  the
rise and demise
of many kingdoms prior to the
advent of Islam like, for exam-
ple, the kingdoms of Sheba,
Maeen, Hadramaut, Qataban
and Ausan.

These kingdoms controlled
the whole Arabian peninsula
and the northeastern part of
Africa  (today’s  Eritrea,
Ethiopia, Djibouti  and
Somalia), but with the decree
enacted by the Himyarite King
Dhu Nawas, in which he
ordered the people to discard
Christianity and embrace
Judaism, he signaled the
beginning of the astounding
fall whose repercussions are
still tangible until this very
day.

That incident made the
inhabitants of Yemen disinte-
grate between the two camps,
to either become Christian or
Jewish and hence gave a
chance for the new invaders,
like the Yemeni-Ethiopian
half-castes and the Persian
prisoner army who saw in
Yemen a prey and failed to run
the country as its own indige-
nous people did for thousands
of years.

The pure Arab Yemenis later
embraced Islam and saw in it
their life-boat. They embarked
on the chariot of Islam to
invade other lands until they
controlled the Iberian
Peninsula and reached Poitiers

in southern France, and thanks
to them we have today’s Arab
world.

So it is unbefitting for the
Yemenis of today to claim
being the heirs to the glorious
past civilizations of Yemen.

Because, in fact, till this
very day by their actions and
deeds they give the stark evi-
dence that they are the descen-
dants of those who seized the
opportunity of disintegration
and invaded the country.

Being primitive and of a
mediocre type they failed to
run the country but successful-
ly succeeded in bringing it
down to its knees due to their
insatiate desire to loot and rob.

Nowadays, just like the
invaders of yore are those who
run Yemen, for instead of
being good people looking for
means and ways to develop the
country, they have nothing in
mind except devising new
techniques to loot and steal,
and have succeeded again to
make Yemen unable to shed its
beggar image to the extent that
there are no positive signs of
improvement in the offing at
all.

Corruption has become the
norm. Look at the customs
where goods are entered fraud-
ulently and the administrators
have become well off within
few months’ time.

Look at the taxation people
who boast having castles and
huge amounts in foreign
accounts.

Look at the pretexts of

recurring seminars, confer-
ences and incessant travels
wherefore large amounts of
hard currency are wasted in
vain. A brief visit to a castle of
one of those bureaucratic lead-
ers shall recount you the extent
of corruption, for you will see
the last car models of different
types which are bankrolled by
government moneys, a thing
that is not done even by some
wealthy Arab states.

I know an official who owns
15 cars, different bank
accounts in Europe and lots of
investments here and there,
despite his destitute back-
ground.

Look at the state lands
which are coveted and fraudu-
lently obtained and the last of
which are being stolen, the
gardens encroached, usurped,
eaten away or their destiny is
still in the works like Althawra
Garden in Aljiraf which used
to be an airport at the time of
the notorious Imam Ahmed
Hamiduldin and now is neg-
lected, its trees hacked or made
to die gradually.

So in order to prove being
worthy of this country and its
past could we hope that this lax
and sad state of affairs shall
come to an end and efforts to
improve are stepped up.
Yemen needs sincere people
having the will and determina-
tion to bring a fair judicial sys-
tem, not just a slogan trans-
parency, equality of opportuni-
ties and whatnot.

Am I hoping against hope?
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“Those who believe

fight in the cause of Allah,

And those who reject faith
Fight in the cause of Evil (Tagut)"’ b

by DAVID OUELLET

WoNPERWOREA

HOW TO PLAY: First read the list of words, then look at the puzzle. The words are in all directions —
vertically, horizontally, diagonally, backward. Circle each letter of a word found and strike it off the list. The
letters are often used more than once, so do not cross them out. It is best to find the big words first. When you
find all the words listed in the clues, you'll have a number of letters left over that spell the Wonderword.

CLUES
Adult Cultural Gentlemen Preen Striped
Allergies Curl Grains Press Suede
Arrange Dainty Groom Printing Suits
Attire Dampen Large Purses Swipe
Aura Dates Linen Rectangular Taper
Bandana Decorative Logos Rinse Tidy
Border Delicate Makeup Roll Tough
Bulge Dirt Material Seam Towel
Bulky Dress up Meal Shine Trim
Buyer Dust Napkin Short Tuck
Cases Elegance Neat Showy Velvety
Class Embroidered  Opera Silk Washed
Cloth Eyes Party Sneeze Wept
Clubby Fabric Pattern Soft Width
Costume Face Personal Spare Wool
Cotton Finale Pick Spotted
Creases Fringe Plain. . Spread
Crush Galas Pocket Stain
Cuffs Garment Pouch Stitch

ANSWER NEXT WEEK

Last Week’s Answer: Flapjack

HANDKERCHIEFS Solution: 4 letters
T|IR|I | MK|P|T|T|S|S|E|R|P|S|E|S|R|U|P|T
FIS|IA|{C/UR|A|Y|A|Y|D|I|T|N|E|H|C|U|O|P
O/E|U/E|I|E|T|L|S|C|L|A|S|S|O|T|E|L|C|E
SITIKIDI[N|N|A|T|W|A|I |O/A|B|L|T|A|Y|K|W
FIA|C|E|I |G|IR{A|I|N|S|C|O|T|U|N|T|D|E|H
M|C|N|/A|G|O|E|R|P|VIA|/R|IOW|O|Y|L|O|T|S
W/l |D|IT/IHR|E|ID/E|IN|/D|R|S|S|W|UJE|R|C|U
LILIE|SIA|T|O|L|A|E|L|DIR|O|T|E|G|R|U|R
KIE|H/P/A|A|V|O|IRIM|/A|E/H|IA|G|U|G|H|L|C
LID/|SIM|T|E|N|F/M|E|P|S/W/R|N|O|M|L|T|P
I/E|A|T|T/E|A|A|/R|L/ D/EJH/O|I |G|L|E|U]|A
SIRIW|Y|I |B|{C|P|D|T|N|E|N|I |[T|NJE|S,/R|B
DIE|P|I|R|T|S|{N|H|N|P|I|C|K|N.|A|S|E{A|T
N/D|S|I|E|C|C|T|A|E|A|S|A|O|I |[E|P|E|L|N
P/I|C|A|L|F|O|H|S|G|T|B|E|L|R|O|O|E|R|E
A|O/K|IUIE|L|R[N|P|I |[E|L/EID|IP|A|T|E|R|M
R|R|B|P|C/R|E|I |U|R|A|L|U|G|N|A|T|C|E|R
TIBI[UA/AIE|C|S|NIN|E/A/E|D/IR|T|E|I|O[A
Y MICIA|Z|N|S|E|I|G|R|E|L|L|AJAD|L|V|G
EIE|D|E|U|S|F|F|U|IC|E|MIN|P |Y|K|L|U|B|E

www.wonderword.com

© 2004 Universal Press Syndicate

A letter to the teachers of English: 45
How to use a
dictionary effectively (1)

DR..M.N.K.BOSE
(BOSE @y.net.ye)
‘| Associate Professor of
English,

Faculty of Arts, Ibb

Dear Fellow teachers,

am planning to write a couple
of letters on this important sub-
ject. Sometime ago, [ received a
mail from one of the readers, a
teacher I suppose, questioning
the valldlty of some of the expressions
in my letters. While I welcome such
responses from the readers, I would
like to request my readers to refer to a
good and new dictionary, if you don’t
find my expressions acceptable to you,
because a good and current dictionary
is the ultimate authority for us to end
our ‘quarrels’, if there is any.

If you notice, I have stressed the
words ‘good and new’; yes, it is impor-
tant to buy a new dictionary every ten
years at least. Once, when I asked the
teacher participants on a course if they
have dictionaries, most of them said
yes; when I checked their dictionaries,
most of them were what their parents
were using about 25 or 30 years before.
When I told them why we have to go in
for a new dictionary periodically, they
realized their mistakes and bought new
dictionaries.

Why do dictionaries become outdat-
ed? Simply because language is alive
and keeps changing due to the chang-
ing needs of the people who use it; new
words are added, words go out of use,
pronunciation of the words changes,
meaning changes; for example, the
word ‘nice’, I understand, meant ‘silly’
in Shakespeare’s time, would you
believe it? Similarly the pronunciation
of the word ‘deity’ has undergone a
change. New words being added is
common in all languages, mainly due
to the scientific and technological
innovations and the language users’
efforts to keep pace with them. You
will all agree that computers and their
peripherals have brought in many new

Poetry Corner

By the sea,

By IMAN IBRAHIM
Ta1z

Early in the morning; just before
the sun rises

Before the cock crows.

As the fresh wind blows from the
west
- Suddenly the music dlsappears as
though gone with the wind

Everything becomes so silent;
except the wind

That blows from the west to the east

And she finds herself nowhere.

The’re so much to say; such a big
heart to share

Yet such a small world to hide
from.

She turns towards the sea;

As her robe’s blown backwards;
tracing her tall graceful body.

Step by step

She moves with her delicate feet;
that leaves

A pattern by the sea shore.

By the sea, with her tears.

Why you left me, why you
deceived me? She cries

Her mind goes back

To the days when the moon was
young and the time still so early.

In aland so far far away; across this
sea

The sea that shares the ‘same color

words in all the languages; if the users
find it difficult to form a new word,
they borrow a suitable word from a
foreign language and start using it till
perhaps a new word is formed in their
language. We are aware of the new
words added to our mother tongues
over the past few years. Of course
these changes take place over a long
period of time; new words are not
added every fortnight! It has taken
about five to six hundred years for the
change in the meaning of the word
‘nice’. Good dictionaries take these
changes into account. If we don’t
change our dictionaries periodically,
we may not be able to be aware of
these changes at all.

Now, something about dictionaries.
There are different dictionaries for dif-
ferent purposes. There are technical
dictionaries for different fields of sci-
ence, for example, medical dictionar-
ies, agricultural dictionaries, -aeronau-
tic dictionaries, dictionaries of linguis-
tics etc. These are exclusively for the
use of people in the fields concerned,
and may not be of much use to us,
unless we want to refer to some scien-
tific or technical or linguistic terms.
Similarly, there are monolingual, bilin-
gual and trilingual dictionaries. What
we need is a good monolingual or a
bilingual dictionary, preferably a
monolingual one. If you can afford a
second one, go in for a bilingual dic-
tionary. What is a good dictionary?
The minimum we expect in a good dic-
tionary is that it has a good number of
words, with the meanings of each word
explained in simple words, with the
grammatical explanation of the word,
wherever necessary, and with the help
to pronounce the words correctly. If
you can afford, you can have a diction-
ary of idioms. Schools can buy the dic-
tionary with pictorial representations
for words for the benefit of younger
learners. More about using the diction-
aries later.

Yours fraternally,
Dr.M.N.K.Bose

with tears

of her eyes.

What’s so mysterious about that
land?

Did this sea share the same pain
that she is going through?

Why this sea? Why those tears.

I turn round and round

Not knowing what I am looking for,

How could I find something, while
not knowing what I am searching for?

The gap is too large to be filled

So mystified without a clue.

She is beautiful beyond words; yet
in so much pain without complaints

Step by step.

She moves with her delicate feet;
that leaves a patter by the sea shore

Why you left me? Why you
deceived me? She cries

As she moves into the sea; slowly
she goes down and down into the sea

I run towards her; the sun’s rising
slowly, but where is she to be found?

She is gone, without touching her
hand or even a lock of her hair

Too late, too late to let her know
that she took my heart away with her.

I turn towards the sky; watching the
birds flying

In circles mourning for her; why
you left me, I cry my heart out

As my tears pour into this sea; the
sea that bears so much of her tears

Oh sun! Why shine now?

Ix s really samethmg qﬂeen .
To have that spirit
ins;de my dancmg heart

I’ve searched everywhere,
For real love

But I couldn’t ﬁnd any
Except hatred and pain.

_ Youllove, justyou
_ You give me the whole power,
 And make me ixk.e a ﬂawer, .
~ Myageis anly an hour
..I Stffor you '

. ‘"v-Thmugh tinck and thm
_ lpray, O Lord O Merciful,
‘Take away all depraved sins
o Frcm thine Worshtper s hearts.

. By TAHANI OMER
- ENGLISH DEPARTMENT
FacuLty or EDUCATION

~ SanA’A UNIVERSITY
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By SANTOSH MENON
AND MARK BENDEICH

LONDON (Reuters) - Indebted soccer
club Leeds United has failed to secure
more breathing room from creditors in
its fight to survive, but lenders stopped
short of pushing the club to the wall.

Leeds, being strangled by more than
80 million pounds worth of debt, had a
temporary agreement with creditors
which protected it from demands for
repayment, but this expired on Friday
afternoon.

“It certainly puts pressure on Leeds,”
said Bill Gerrard, professor- of sports
management and finance at Leeds
University Business School, adding that
Leeds now had only until the time of its
next debt repayment to arrange a finan-
cial rescue.

“The creditors are saying, ‘Get a deal
done because the next time a payment
comes up and you can’t meet it, obvious-
ly Leeds United will have to go into
administration,” he told Sky TV.

Leeds, which has declined to say
when its next debt repayment is due,
suspended its London-listed shares from
trade on Friday and said in a brief state-

ment that its major creditors were still
supportive of its efforts to find a solu-
tion. Its debts exceed a year’s revenue.
“The board confirms that it continues
to retain the support of these major
finance creditors whilst it seeks to
finalise its negotiations with interested

Weekend Package:

Check in on a Wednesday OR Thursday
Check out on Friday OR Saturday

The package will include: (early checlk in. late check out)

- Welcome fruit basiket in the room

- Full brealgfast buffet (wo mornings)

- Aone dinner for two in any of the hotel restaurants.

- Accemmodation in Double Reom on sea view (two nights)

Above package will be at 36.500 Y.R for double occupancy
room. pe

\

The Package is valid till 30/04/2004.
Space: is' subject to hotel availability.

Airport transportation will be provided _free of charge upon
request.

Jor Reservation Please call:
Sheraton Gold Mohur Hotel & Resort-Aden. Tel: 02 204010
Fax: 02 205158

email: Reservation.adenyemen(isheraton.com

Shares in debt-laden Leeds United were suspended on the stock excha
premier league club’s financial position. A file photo shows Leeds United players standing together before their match against
Manchester United at Old Trafford, Manchester, on Feb. 2.

parties relating to a long term financial
restructuring,” the Premier League club
said.

Fund manager M&G, a major holder
of bonds in Leeds, said the club had its
support. “We are continuing to support
the club in finding a long-term solution,”
said spokesman Simon Anderson, but he
refused to say when interest and repay-
ments fell due.

If Leeds, home to stars such as Alan
Smith, Mark Viduka and Paul Robinson,
fails to find a buyer or other form of
financial rescue, it could become the first
Premiership club to go into administra-
tion — a form of creditor protection sim-
ilar to Chapter 11 bankruptcy in the
United States.

In the UK, firms can continue trading
under the control of an administrator,
usually an accountant, who runs the
business in the interests of all creditors.
If the business cannot be revived, the
administrator can sell off its assets.

Bottom of the league

Leeds has had its standstill agreement
extended several times in the past two
months, each time placating creditors
with the prospect of a takeover bid that
has so far failed to happen.

The club not only labours under a debt
burden brought about by a player-buying
spree, but also lies at the bottom of the
Premier League and faces relegation
from the top division.

It made a loss of 49.5 million pounds
in the year to June 2003, and has been
struggling to find a buyer. One of two
consortia looking at Leeds quit the bid-
ding on Thursday, leaving a Yorkshire-
based consortium as the only active suit-
or.
“We are the only party to have submit-

nge on Feb. 27, before an announcement about the

REUTERS/Paul Sanders

ted a bid, we have proof of funding and
we continue to negotiate. This does not
alter the situation,” said Gerald Krasner,
a Leeds solicitor who is representing the
consortium.

But Leeds University’s Gerrard said
the consortium bid would only rescue the
creditors, not necessarily the club.
“Leeds still needs a lot of money with
regard to wage contracts.”

Fans were frustrated. “We’re all get-
ting fed up of hearing the takeover’s on
then it’s off. I don’t know what’s going
to happen, but in traditional Leeds fash-
ion I don’t think it’ll be anything good,”
said supporter Paul McManus.

Leeds United, born out of financial
ruin in 1919 when its predecessor Leeds

| B - A

I ,ere:;iedl
premises as of today.

\,

apply at ‘Aédlr.nlpa;ny

».e‘

Tel- 01-413136 / 413138 / 73228

City was wound up, won some respite
last month when its players agreed to
defer part of their wages. Some of the
players were earning over 50,000 pounds
a week.

Shares in the 2001 Champions League
semi-finalist last traded at 2.75 pence,
valuing the club at about 9.5 million
pounds. The shares are to remain sus-
pended, Leeds said.
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Aries

(Mar 21 - Apr 19)

The more you do to please the
ones you live with, the better you
will fare when you want help in
return. An opportunity to invest in
something unique should be
considered.

Taurus
with

with a community event. The
more you get involved, the more
people you'll meet along the way.

Gemini

(May 21 - Jun 20)

Put your energy into what means
the most to you. Once you have
made up your mind what it is you
want to pursue, the rest will fall
into place. Your past experience
will help to guide you.

Cancer

(Jun 21 - Jul 22)

Your emotional sensitivity will be
easily recognized so don't be
afraid to follow through with a few
words about the way you feel and
what your intentions are. You'll be
happy you did.

Leo

(Jul 23 - Aug 22)

Don't be the one to divulge secret
information. Keep busy so you
aren’t tempted to share — not
even with your closest confidant.
Listen, don't reveal.

Virgo

(Aug 23 - Sep 22)

Jump into a leadership position if
you are given the chance. Stop
procrastinating and follow your
heart. Someone you are involved
with may think that you have
taken on too much but will
eventually join your crusade.

(Apr 20 - May 20)
Make arrangements .
neighbors if you need some help

Libra

(Sept 23 - Oct 22)

A chance to make a change in
your career or your personal life
will be to your benefit. Disputes
with your family are likely. You will
have to put yourself first today
regardless of opposition.

Scorpia

(Oct 23 - Nov 21)
Get involved in
events. The more you have to do
with people of diverse
backgrounds, the more you will
learn about yourself.

community

possibilities. Losses are likely if
you are reckless.

Capricorn

(Dec 22 - Jan 19)

You may be feeling a little down in
the dumps. Plan to spend time
with someone who really touches
you. The more attentive and
affectionate you are, the better.

Aquarius

(Jan 20 - Feb 18)

You can make money if you put
your mind to it. Draw from that
vivid imagination and let your
creative side develop an idea that
will bring you the extra cash

Pisces

(Feb 19-Mar 20)

Physical events that require
mental agility and stamina should
be exactly what you need. Move
in a more lucrative — and exciting
— direction. Romance is likely.

Sagittarius

(Nov 22 - Dec 21)

Watch out for shysters who want
to take your money. Fast-talking
investment brokers will only
dazzle you with unlikely
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Head Cfice:
¢ Tek: +967 1 208613
raovo e FEK+967 1 205579

the fastest way to send and receive money worldwide.
AL-HAMD FOR EXCHANGE.

Sana’a, Al-Tahreer St. Tel:286562, 273069
Hadda st.Near Al-Komaim center. Mobile:73775335

B Al-Nasim Travel & Tourism. For
domestic & international air tickets
with price busters all airlines.

Tel: 219890/ 270750
Alkumaim Trading Center Hadda st.

@ Al-Nasim Cargo
Forwarders for packing,
customs clearance, domestic
& international forwarding
air & sea. Contact: Al-
Nasim cargo forwarder.
Al-Zubairi St Sanaa. Tel:
275903 /216048 / 407905
B ITS Global Logistics,
Tel: 967-1-218142 (5 lines)
Fax: 967-1209940, Email:
itsgroup@y.net.ye
itsglobalogistic @y.net.ye P.
O. Box 25159, Sana’a.,
R.O.Y. Business
Development, 73217750,
Customer Service:
73212272 Operations:
73217752 Exemptions
73214700. Global Logistic
Solutions International
Fright Forwarding
(Land/Sea/ Air). Weather
Proof Packing, Removals &
Warehousing International
Door-to-door services
(Worldwide). Customs
clearance, Exemptions,

Catgs
ol g a1 bl g ot 1
THE BEST IN PACKING
& FORWARDING

Tel.: 967-1-208898 - 408518
Fax: 208897,

Email: yempac@y.net.ye
P.O.Box: 3366.
SANA'A REPUBLIC OF YEMEN
WEB:http/www.yempac.com.

ADHBAN
Cargo Services

N i i
N W 5

SAUDI ARABIAN AIRLINES GSA
dogeull el 4igall bghyl

Mukalla -Tel. 05-307967/8, Fax. 05-307968, P.O. Box. 8065
Email: adhban_aviation@y.net.ye

www.ITSGLOBALOGISTI
CS.

COM

M Red Sea
Packing,General Trading
Agency.(Circle
International). Packing,
Travels, Forwarding,
Custom Clearance, Copiers,
Faxes, Stencil Duplicators,
Copy printers. Tel: 264089
/090/124 Fax: 00967-1-
264104/417387. Email:
redsea@y.net.ye. Hadda
Complex B. 6. PO.
Box:19227,Sana’a, ROY.
B YEMEN PACKING &
FORWARDING
CO.(YEMPAC CARGO)

 WORLDLINK INTTL, NREK sttt St Alyg

Freight
Customs
Transport

Packing

.63, Box: 58586 - Sana"s- YR
Tel: +967.-1-444550-441933/6
Fax: +967-1- 434540

Tel: 967-1-208898, Fax:
967-1-208897

E-mail: yempac@ y.net.ye.
Operations:
408518/7904603

Sales & Mkt: 408517/
73208898,

Clearance: 408518.

Global Logistic Solutions
International Fright
Forwarders (Land/Sea/Air).
Weather Proof Packing,
removals & Warehousing
International Door-to-door
services (Worldwide).
Customs clearance,
Exemption
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Y Situation
Vacant

T BRequired  Female
teacher with very good
English to work with

respectful school, non

F accented to deal with 6
- 9 years old Kids.
excellent and

R productive  working
environment, please

E contact 73811430
BMRequierd 1) Skin
care and cosmetic

E expert , 2) coiffure and

hair dressing 3)
fashion designer.
please contact

1441942, 73566232

M American academic
institute seeks for , 1)
2)

relationship

secretary

employees.pls contact :
248810 Sana'a , Hadda
St., 249294 Hadda St

§

Al Jarassi Buld.

BRequired sales manager
with some experience in
marketing UPS / security
system . post C.V , Standex,
P.O.Box 14314, Sanaa,
Fax:210292

BRequierd for  Sana'a

Grammer School :1) Sport
teacher , 2) music teacher ,
be experienced and
dedicated , pls contact 410080
. 425482

B Requierd:1)

must

electrical engineer, five years

exp Yemeni nationality
graduate in electrical , English
& computer proficiency
2) A Technician (Electical)
. Yemeni nationality, five
years exp,contact:send your
C.Vto 01 440415

BRequierd
company :1)a contractar or

for a leader

engineer in excavation about
2) 3

(female) with english spoken

water secretaries
and computer, 3)accounting
trainers

contact: 73818132

B Requierd for A reputed
company A well qualified
Yemeni sale manager for their
tender activities, pls contact
e-mail:whatacat@
softhome.net

B Requierd for the meridian

Institute of English and
computer Six  English
teachers three computer

teachers pls contact:73212872

B Required for a reputed
company,an experienced
secretary Jknowing
independint  Englis/Arabic
corres pondence and
proficiant incomputers

(Female) Po box 3898email:
whatacat@softhome .net

B Required a civil engineer,
well qualified in English and
computer. Please contact at:
71145887.

Job Seekers

wor

W ANEL. P 100 350

Hyoung man with
B.S.C..,mechanical
engineering with  good

experience in oil field, and

computer, seeking right
opportunity.

pls contact : 71102061.

B A graduated from faculty of
commerce , political dep.

has diploma in English and

secretary and automation
office , seeking right
opportunity.

pls contact : 71480668.
B Shaik  Magdoon
expertise in gold ornaments

Indian

sales or any clerical post. pls
contact 71155443,

B Indian lady candidate
B.com..M.B.A., &

Psychology degree

with
M.A.,
with V.good computer and
English skills
seeking right oppertunity. pls
contact 73810416.
B Musheer
Almowllad, bachelor degree
Arabic and

Department

;anguage

Ismael

in languages.
translation
working in translation, have
good experince in computers,
please contact :71150488
email:Al-musheer98 @

hotmail.com

B Abduh naji yahya,
graduate  from  thamar
university, English
specialiazation. please

contact : 73868522
W Skilled young man on cars
driving, in

good English

language and computers

ot LG

Al Soglandt )it Asgnit daglait

Sana’a - Tel. 272808,272973, Telefax. 272809, P.O. Box: 1103,
Mukalla -Tel. 05-307967/8, Fax. 05-307968, P.O. Box. 8065
Email: adlibantravel@y.net.ye

learning!!!

Attention!

9/12 pass Student / Fresh Graduates! Professionals! ISA offers coaching/guid-
ance/counseling on Degree Programs of American World University.
Bachelors/ Masters/Doctorate/Diploma/Certificate Programs. Author of
Improve Your English is here. Please Rush new! Special
Batch!! Do you miss anything npw? Yes, Translation! Enjoy

: Please Tel 1-312039/ 417441,
Email: isacademy2002@yahoo.com,
Website: www.isacademy.org

il g &l )5

baby an(er

like to work at Embassies or
foreign firms , please contact
1 173630770
B Shamlan

Awadhi ,

business

Al-

bachelor degree in

Nasser

administration
have Toefl test in English

Jdiploma in computer science

.experiance in
administration, sales,
accounts . managing pls

contact 71922020 , 673280 .
B Abduh Alzakari ,holding a
bachelor of arts, English
department, experience in
driving, looking for a job in
tourism.pls contact 73868522
BMMazen Abdullah B.A
degree in english language,
good computer skills, want to
in school

work private

.please contact
tel:73502369

WAl Al-Kadas, Bachelor in
translation / Mosul university

-Iraq,proficiant in dealing

with most of computer
programs, pls  contact
:278325.

M Translation services . we
are offering quality, accuracy
and authentic  language
(Arabic-English - Russian )
with in
NGO

issues. pls contact :415-307.

Real Estate

B For rent: Furnished villa
with Beautiful small garden
at Sakania_Hadda for int .
Personnel sitting .dinning,
Mafrag,maid and two
Master bed rooms it is Safe
Contact Mustafa: 73416400 .
B For

Beautiful big garden,2 floors

special expertise

and  development

rent: villa with

hall | 5 bed rooms |, guard
in Algeria St. Pls
Contact Majed: 73597541
73398063 .

M For sale: Flat consist of 3
hall,

room.

bedrooms, kitchen,

bathroom, in Altawahi city -

Aden(no brokers pls) .pls
contact 02-202550.

B For rent: Furnished villa
with Beautiful small garden at
Sakania_Hadda

Personnel sitting ,dinning,

for int
Mafrag,maid and two Master
bed rooms it is Safe . Contact
Mustafa: 73416400 .

M Forsale :Building located
at crater (ADEN), in front of
tele_ yemen, next to Arwa
cinema. pls
73524337

B For rent 3 story villa with

contact:

basment and garden. behind
moka building, next to the
En
Tel

Hassan

Amircan office for
.prepration
:240332/260517
taleb Tel : 240332

o
modern building in Al-Ribat
St. Al-Qadisia

roadcross and can be used as

For rent a five-floor

near to
a university or a hospital.

Please contact at:
467831/2/3/4, Fax 467835.

B For rent two story +f.
basement villa. Ground floor
open floor

plan, large

reception area, liv. rm.,
dining rm., large kitchen. 2nd
floor, master suite, 5 bd. rms
5 bths, and garden .excellent

finishing. monthly rent $ 1,

600 Haddah area. Please
contact Ahmed Muraisi:
73802855.

W For sale:Audi 80 in good
condition full automatic, pls
contact Dr.Shakeel
73812799.
HFor sale :
1995
condition.
contact:73580897

B For sale Nissan petrol
1996 154000
Km,7,5008,excelent

Suzuki (vitara)

in a very good

pls

1

March, 2004
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Eoemndl fabad@y net ye
Homea Page: y.oatyafalak

Exclusive Tmporter & Distribators of
Computers § Spare, Aceessories Ribbons,
Lamer Toner & Ink cortridges

Telefax:216721 - Tel:2194670 - 219610 - 73214540-73880097 P.0.Box 19398-Cr:73880097

oy

5«

Per line, Per year $300 Only
Brigade 191.Water Problems 171. Telephone enquires
118. Accident (Traffic) 194, Foreign Affairs, 202544/7.
Interior Affairs 252701/7, Immigration 250761/3, Inter-
City Bus Co. 262111/3. Ministry of Communication
325110/1/2/3, Radio Station 282061, Tourism 254032,
TV Station 332001/2. Red Crescent 203131/3. Tel-
Yemen 7522202, Y.net 7522227

Continental Airlin 278668/283082
Egypt Air 273452/275061
Gulf Air 440922
Lufthansa 213400/219252

Qatar Air ways Fax: 506038, Tel.506030/5

BANKS

YBRANCH OF FOREIGN BANKS:
Yemen Gulf Bank Fax:260824 Tel.967-1-260823

Credit Agricole Indosuez

Head Office: Al-Zubiry St. 274371/2/3
Al-Qasr St. 272802/1/20
Aden : Al-Ma’alla St: 02/247402/3/4

Hodeidah 26th Sept. St.:
Taiz Al-Mugama'a St.: 04/210568/9/50
-‘Hay Addis-main St. 05/352917-306560
Shamil Bank of Yemen & Bahrain
Tel. 264775 .264702. Fax. 264703,503350

03/219506/7

Aden: 02-237199
Taiz: 04-250343
Mukalla: 05-307492
Hodeidah: 03-206998

Computer Education
(Internet Focussed
Curriculum, E-commerce,
1SO 9001 Certified)
NIIT Quality
Computer Education Tel. 445518/7-442073
Compute me Tel: 263532, Fax: 263530
New Horizons Computer Learning Centers

Tel: 01-448573-449356/7/8/9

ma Sana’'a: 441024/5. Aden:243124

Hodeidah:219643. Ibb:406882
Taiz: 213489, Mukalla 309190

Sana’a: 440170, Aden: 248177
Hodeidah:234982. Ibb:411988
Mukalla 302641 Seuyn: 402469

Shabua: 202326

Tel. 448541/448543
Fax: 00967 1 448542
Mobile: 00967 73 200 654

ws

Cassosden 13 dune.

Sana’a: 416751

Dr. Abdulsalam N. Awas 602408
Shehab Dental Center 400443/218824

a3, FREIGHT FORWARDERS

407905
278674/7909110
Sana'a: 441024/5
Sana’a: 440166
440891/344467
218142

Al-Nasim Cargo Forwarders

Al-Rawahil Olympia

Aramex

Griffin Logistics Ltd.

Gulf Air Cargo

ITS Global Logistics

Marib Travel & Tourism
(Cargo Division)

Yempac

441109/126 Fax: 440733
Sana’a 208898-408518

Yemeni Banks:
Central Bank
Yemeni Islamic Bank
Taiz:
Hodeidah:
YBRD

Hertz Rent a Car

Yemen Limozeen Rent A Car
Abu Riyadh CO.

Sana’a: 401552-205678

CAR RENTAL

Sana’a: 01-440309
Aden: 02-245625
417346-7927920

Sana’a: 410594

CAR SHOWROOMS
& SPARE PARTS

COMPUTER EDUCATION
TRAINING CENTER

HOSPIT

Yemen German Hospital (open heart su
Tel. 4

Modern German Hospital Tel.
E-mail:felixpene @hotmail.com

The First Consultant center for the skin.

venerial Diseases & Infertility 2

Al-Jelani Hospital

Al-Jumhury Hospital

Al-Thawra Hospital

Yemen Specialized Hospital

274310/1

251816
213517
271623/4

SANA’A:
Al-Yamama Palace Suites:

FORD/HYUNDAI 267791 Best Western Hadda Hotel:
MERCEDES-BENZ 01 - 330080 Hadda Town:

NISSAN Hodeidah: 200150/49, Sana’a; 400269  Raipon Hotel & Suites
OPEL/GM 203075 ADEN:

SUZUKI 02 - 346000  Amoudi Plaza Hotel
TOYOTA 445362/3  Elephant BayBeach Resort

German Language Institute

rgery)

18000, Fax: 418116

600000/602008
Fax. 601889

05517-73807737
615402-615400
274285

246366

224963

HOTELS

236230
415212/5
415900
504016/7/8

(02) 247000/1-5
(02) 202055

INSTITUTE

200945

The British Institute for Languages 440719/415812
American Academic Institute 249294

INSURANCE COMPANIES

Arab Insurance Company Sana’a 606810/1/2/3/4/5
Fax /6 Aden:257875-260827. Taiz; 260744 |
Hodeidah: 279672/3. Mukalla: 309744, Abyan:
604030

Al-Watania Insurance (Y.S.C.)

Sana'a 272713/874
Taiz 250029

Marib Insurance
Aden: 255668
Hodeidah: 219545/8
Trust Yemen Ins. & Reinsurance Co.
Yemen Islamic Insurance Co. Sana’a
5 lines, Taiz: 258881,

Yemen Insurance company
272962/43,  Aden: 247617 Taiz: 250345
Mukalla: 304292, Hodeidah: 261839/17

RESTAURANT

Indian Restaurant (home delivery available)
Contact: Mr. Sunny Joseph 263925-71150769
Chilli House Rest. for brost, Cabab etc.. 73568079

Aden: 243490-242476
Hodeidah 219941/4/6
Sana’a: 206129/8/13
Taiz:240927/34

264263
284193,

Aden: 244280
Sana’a: 272806/

Sana’a Turkish School 448258/9
Al-Hussein National Schools 412826/7
Al-Majd Yemen School 206159
The English School 419308
Tulip School 412249

Ienshams Modern school
Rainbow school

671275, 671140
414-026/424-433

Supermarket

AL- UL Supermarket. 0l- _.510
.
Translations

Urwa Wautqa Int. Auth. Trans. Arabic-English-French
-German-Russian-Italian- Spanish-Polish-Dutch-
Iranian-Turkish-Eriterea-Ambharic. . 01-240515

Abu Yaser Travel&Tourism tel:611560
Ashtal Travel & Tourism Fax: 440839 Tel. 440930
Al-Nasim Travel 270750

Fax: 265202 Tel. 241667/500808
Tel. 444000/888
Tel. 414755/410302
Fax: 414798

Fax: 216028 Tel: 400722

266258 Tel: 260932-46
Travel Center Tel: 441158/9/60

- UNIVERSITIES

American World University. Rep. by IS academy
Tel. 01 - 417441 Fax: 412039
University of Applied and Social Science
Sana’a: 412442 Fax: 412441
Aden: 234533 / 234960
44997172
250553/4/5

Al-Sunidar
Apollo Business Travel Center
Arabian Peninsula T & T

Murjan Travel
Sky Travels Fax:
Universal Busin

Queen Arwa University
Sana’a University

APTECH Sana’a: 01 -446880 Modern British Institute (University Branch) 203689

condition owned by publishing of this ad. to the W For sale: A lap top Dell 1

o " ‘ , Lost ltem's
iplomatic contact Royal Netherlands Embassy company P4, in a very good

73111943 / 225564. in Sana'a. For further condition, 512 Ram, 1.7 W Toefl certificate issued to
| | For sale: Nissan information: 421800. GHz, 30 GB hard disk, cd C ghaloub from UK
athfinder , good condition, Rom. DVD, Cd writer, if found.

P il Computer

6,000 $, customs unpaid. please contact on

contact 73217350 BMFor sale PI with internet 71286716.

B For sale:Full automatic
Lancer 200149000 km .
excelent condition, only 9500
$ . pls contact 71145887.

B For sale: Toyota Prado,

in

1998, in a very good
condition. Customs to be

settled by buyer. Interested
persons to present their bids
in closed envelopes within 2

weeks as from the date of

| OFor SaleCJRequired [JAvailable (For Lease [For Hire/Rent [JJob Require DSit(u)zal:ion Vacant
thers

Details:

Contact Address:

modem, compaq made.
original.good condition,
price(25,000) YR, neg

otiable. conatct 73810416

B For sale PIII in a very
good condition 512 Ram, 500
20Gb hard disk, cd
Rom, prize $250 not ready

mhz,
for  negotiation, please
contact Mr. Abdulla Ahmed,
Mobile: 71176455

wire.

stabline

Home/Office

Equipment

B For sale: Voltage regulator

EMT

american brand new man-
1967. output 220V L-N, 38
Amp, 25 KVA three phase 4

pls

contact:
Fax:(02) 245693, Nageeb.

10338

Aden

For more info.
L--------——

Please cut this coupon and send it to Yemen Times fax: 268276 or P.O. Box 2579 - Sana’'a 1
ontact Mr. Victor, 268661/2/3, 73810416
L8 B B N N _§ N &8 §B §B N &N _§B &R _§N__§N J
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Sana’a-Haddah St.

P.O. box: 5465

o | PRV

Infront of Al-Komaiam Center
Tel: 266375-505290, Fax: 267619

E-mail: shaibani@yemen.net.ye

WA LS o

yylidee 9 malae
Al-Shabani Restaurant
i super De Luxe

ool areSll 58 o alef Ban g 5L lelain
LoYA.=Y\\YVo:!

shabani@yemen.net.ye : 5s5<0 wp

Opticals

asla

28N L s

LBy Jo¥g .. oYl
FreshLook

a7 e oS 9 1i5aeSTL 4588 5y 1
ibial! (9l L) Adia S Silwaal! Gigh

LYXOTHAA

AV

' Sferoﬂex

More than 25 years of experience in SAUDI-

* Eye Examination by specialized Egyptian Doctors with hlghl\
specialized cadre & medical equipment
* Wide variety of fashionable ophthalmic & sunglasses frames
* Best quality of medical & colored contact lenses

ARABIA, EGYPT, U.A.E. and OMAN, Now in YEMEN
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Green Land Co.
Ltd.
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Samurai legacy lives on
in the way of the sword

TOKYO, Feb 22 (Reuters) - With Tom
Cruise acting the warrior in “The Last
Samurai”, and Uma Thurman set to slice
her way to revenge in part two of the
action movie “Kill Bill” this spring,
Japanese swordsmanship is cutting a
dash in Hollywood.

Two samurai-themed films have even
picked up nominations for the Oscars at
the end of this month.

But practitioners of laido (pronounced
ee-eye-doh), a 500-year-old Japanese
martial art performed with real swords,
say it has more in common with zen
meditation than with the spectacular
rough and tumble of cinema stunts.

“They are very good at choreograph-
ing fights to make them fun to watch,”
said Sadanori Ueno, a 77-year-old

-

An laidoka or swordsman practises the 500-year-
old Japanese martial art laido near a shadow that

retired engineer and one of Japan’s high-
est rated laidoka, or swordsmen, when
asked about films like “The Last
Samurai” and “Twilight Samurai”.

“But what we do is entirely different.”

Far from the clatter of a movie battle
scene, the shuffling of bare feet on the
wooden floor and the swish of steel
blades were often the only sounds during
a practice session Ueno recently held in
Utsunomiya, 100 km (62 miles) north of
Tokyo.

Though their skills are based on the
lethal techniques of samurai who earned
their living by the sword in feudal times,
the only blood these modern-day laidoka
are likely to shed is their own, as they
generally perform solo.

Like many laido practioners, Ueno
_ took up kendo, the related
martial art of fighting with
wooden swords, as a boy.
He had to give it up after
World War Two when it was
banned under the six-year
U.S. occupation of Japan.

He later switched to
laido, working his way up
through written and practi-
cal tests of increasing diffi-
culty required to become
one of the few to pass the
top level, or eighth “dan.”

IMAGINARY FOE

Dressed in practice gear
consisting of a kimono-like
. garment and full trousers
with a tightly fastened sash,
the students kneel and bow
to a shrine on one wall of
the dojo, or martial arts hall,
at the start of the class.

They then run through a
series of dozens of set
moves, sometimes light-
ning-fast, but each ending
with the sword being slowly
replaced in its scabbard.

Each manoeuvre has its

reads “sword” at a dojo in Utsunomiya, about 100 own scenario — dispatch-

km (62 miles) north of Tokyo, Feb. 15.

REUTERS ing three opponents at

Y v .
73 11 33 55

oyl M g

Sadanori

Seventy-seven-year-old
Ueno, one of Japan’s highest rated
laidokas or swordsmen, shows off his
skills with the 500-year-old Japanese

martial art laido, at a dojo in
Utsunomiya, about 100 km (62 miles)
north of Tokyo, Feb. 15. REUTERS

once; ducking down to deal with a rival
hiding under a piece of furniture; or dart-
ing through a crowd of innocent people to
bump off the bad guy on the other side.

“Imagine your opponent standing right
here. You want to strike him just above
the right eye,” Ueno explained before
demonstrating a swipe from above his
head with a glittering sword that has
been in his family for 300 years.

Absolute concentration is required in
swinging the curved steel blades, at least
70 cm long, as practitioners above begin-
ner level use genuine swords, sharp
enough to sever a limb.

laidoka must register their weapons
and carry a licence when they transport
them.

As well as attracting interest in Europe
and the United States, laido is gradually
becoming more popular in Japan, where
there are more than 75,000 practitioners,
some of them middle-aged beginners
attracted by the fact that age is little
object to developing one’s skills.

About nine percent of laido praction-

LS phdil g sy il 2

ers are women — not an entirely new
development in Japan, where samurai
wives were often trained to protect them-
selves with a short sword.

Despite their differences, several of
Ueno’s students expressed admiration
for the sword-fighters of the silver
screen.

Among the favourites are Japanese
actor Ken Watanabe, who has been
nominated for a best supporting actor
Oscar for his performance in “The Last
Samurai,” and the stars of Japanese
movie “Twilight Samurai,” a nominee for
best foreign film.

“As | do laido, | am very interested in
how they handle their swords and there
are times when | see those movies and
realise there is something | can learn
from them,” said office worker and laido
student Hiroko Yashiro.
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Announcing Term 75:
March 13 - April 14, 2004

( Registration: March 7- 10 \

Classes Available at 9 Levels
(Mornings, Afternoons & Evenings)

= Self-Access Multi-Media Lsb

(Video/Software/Reading & Listening)

= Extra Computer Lab for all
Students

= Plus Many Elective/Special Courses

New TOEFL Preparation Course

March 13- May 26. 2004

For information, contact YALI at:
448 039 or 445 482/3/4 © FAX: 448037 ¢

E-Mall: info@palLorg ye
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Head Office: Taiz P.O.Box6748 Tel.(04)210526 Fax.(04)221511
Sana'a (01)216027 Aden (02) 465622
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CONSOLIDATED CONTRACTORS
INTERNATIONAL COMPANY - SAL

CONSTRUCTION OF MECHANICAL
AND HEAVY CIVIL PROJECTS

@ Petrochemical plants, refineries.

@ Heavy, light industrial plants.

@ Power and desalination plants.

@ Fuel and water storage tanks.

@ Oil fields ancillary installations.

@ Air purification for industry

@ Marine docks, harbours, deep sea
berths & refinery terminals.

@ Offshore structures and underwater works.

@ Pipelines construction and maintenance.

@ Prefabricated accommodation & office facilities.
@ Sewage treatment plants & collection networks.
@ Airports, roads, highways, bridges & fly-overs.
@ High quality buildi & sports

@ Water treatment plants, reservoirs & distribution

systems.

Sanaa

Tel: (967-1) 441638

Fax: (967-1) 441630
E-Mail: cccyemen@y.net.ye

Aden

Tel: (967-2) 377328

Fax: (967-2) 377716
E-Mail: cccaden@y.net.ye

American
Couneil on
Eduecation
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New Horizons®
Fomputer Leanaing Cemters
HOOSE. LEARN. SUCCEED.

Telk 449356/57/58/59
Faxa 448547
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